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Ntﬁmm Electric Corporation is a technology-based firm dedicated to achieving solid growth for
shareholders, customers and employees. A world leader in the electrical industry over its 106-year history, the
Corporation now serves & variety of customers in seven market segments. These segments and major Westinghouse

activities related to them include: Broadcasting |7 radio and five television stations, broadcast television
production and syndication, cable television programming and distnbution,
satellite and business communications

Electronic Systems Advanced electronic systems for military and
commercial applications, electronic vearfare, anti-submanine warfare,
space sensors, information services, logistics and support systems

Environmental Nuclear and hazardous waste environmental systems and
servico:, waste-to-energy plants and services, emissions monitoring and
control, large motors, equipment repair and modemnization, management
of government-owned nuclear facilines

Financial Services (Corporate financing, real esiate financing. leasing

1 Industries Transporn temperature control, electrical distribution and
control. wholesale distribution of elecincal products, commumty land
development

Office Pumiture Office systems. executive fumiture, filing and seanng

Power Systems Nuclear and fossil power systems and plants, nuclear fuel,
process control systems, superconducting magnets, alternative energy
systems, naval nuclear power systems

Financial Highlights

fin mullions except per share amounts )

Sales and operating revenues $12,794 $12915 $12.844 $12,500 $11,232

Net income (loss) (1.086) 268 922 823 901
Common share data

Earmings (loss) per share § (146) $ 091 $ 315 $ 283 $ 312
Dividends 1.40 1.35 1.15 (.96 0.82
Book value at end of vear 11.04 1343 15.10 13.18 11.22
Market value at end of year 18 281/, 37 26%% 24"y
Shares outstanding at end of year 1 290 290 28K IRR
Capnal expenditures § 37 § 405 $ 424 § a2 $ 420
Depreciation and amortization 378 363 367 34K
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LETTER TO SHAREHMOLDERS

For 1991, Westinghouse reported a net
loss of $1.086 billion, or $3.46 a share
on revenues of $12.794 billion. The
results were affected by the recession
and, more significantly. by a $1 68
billion valuation provision to refiect
anticipated losses in hquidating assets
of Westinghouse Financial Services,
Inc. (WFSI), and 2 $160 milhion provi-
sion 1o offset the costs of eliminating
4 000 jobs across the Corporation

These financial results &< as
unsatisfactory to the management of
your Corporation as they are 10 you,
the shareholders

I won't try to sugar-coat these
results. But it is important that you
understand that your current manage-
ment team has taken a senes of acuons
to lay the foundation for a return to

profitable growth.

Management Actions
Here are the most important actions:

« We established the $1.68 billion
valuation provision 10 reCoOgnize in ac-
counting terms the impact of restricted
financial markets, especially real estate,

on the assets of Financial Services;

+ We negotiated a $€ billion revolving
credit agreement with many of the
world’s leading banks;

» We received the approval of the
Board of Directors to 1ssue $500 mil-
hion 1n equity in the form of Preferred
Equity Redemption Cumulative Stock;

+ We reduced net portfolio investments
of WFSI by more than $1.5 billion:

« We reduced the dividend raie 1o
reflect the Corporation’s current finan-

cial condition;

« We implemented a cost-reduction pro-
gram that will save at least $200 million

a year.

Your Board of Directors and man-
agement took these actions — distaste-
ful as some of them were — because
of the difficult financial condition of
WEFSI. The cost-reduction program
addressed the weakened profitability
of some of our other business units
affected by the recession.

I want 10 emphasize that even in
one of the worst economic environ-
ments the country has faced in years.
Westinghouse achieved an operating
profit of almost €1 billion, exclusive
of the special provisions

In previous letiers to shareholders
in February and November of 1991, 1
reviewed the actions we 100k 10 deal
with the situation at WFSI. The key
decision was 10 adopt a stralegy 10
downsize Financial Services, improve
the nisk profile of its portfolio, reduce
its underperforming assets and preserve

its higuadity.

Demonstrating Progress

Some observers voiced concemn as 10
whether this strategy would succeed

in the current economic environment,
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They feared that we would be forced i«
dispose of some of our st assets at
unrealistically low pnices to meet our
financial obhigations
That did not happen. | am gratified
that our success to date seems 10 have
greatly lessened that concern. We have
demonstrate { we can work our way
through this situabior
Execution of the Financial Services
s peen enuusied to Leo W
yrmer long-time chief finan-
fficer of the Corporation, who
1y Invitation to retum as
chief executive of WFSI
progress made by Mr. Yochum
ve leam 1Ir
pated asset sales
wdence that

ibilizing WFSI

Reducing Corts
cost-reduction
ficuit gecisions
wghout the Corporation. Uperaling
and stafl management reduced
employment and other costs m ine
with marketplace expectations for 1992
and beyond. These actions recognize
hat, even afier an eCOnOMIC PECOvEry
ring & low-cost producer will require
unprecedented attention 10 operaung
effectiveness
summary reports on the

describe how each

Revolving Credit Established

f the S6 b

The decision 10 reduce
ly dividend rate to 18 cents per share

from 35 cents was financially prudent

in view of our cash requirements and
current eamings. This
strengthen the balance sheet by redu

'

ing debt and building equity

The Board of Directors’ action in
January 1992 authorizing the issuance
of $500 mallion in equity

Preferred Equity Redemption Cumula

tive Stock, or PERCS., 1s an imponant

wing the finang

Corporatior
e Lorporat

sharehoiders

Effect of New Accounting Standards

.

In 1992, Westinghouse pians 1o adopt
the provisions of two new acc
standards of the Financial A
Standards Board. If the new standards

are adopted, there would be a one-time

net after-tax charge of about $300 mil

lion 1o first-guarnter 199, earmmings, 2

figure much lower than had been ex

pected. Details of Statement of Finan

sal
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perations so that we can

resources in the markets that
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BusiINESS Summany

{in muillions of dollars)

Sales And Opersting Revenues

gy vt iGNy 1

v () e caaie ) St (..

Broadcasting $ 8 $ 858 $ 755
Electronic Systems 3,245 3,196 2.948
Environmental 1191 1.347 1221
Financial Services 1,064 1.209 1,065
Industnes 3,120 3,301 3472
Westinghouse Communities 258 141 127
The Knoll Group 673 422 177
Power Systems 2.651 2442 2,000
Divested and Other 64 310 1 488
imoenngrinn: Satvs e IR L SRS, ......
Sales and Operating Revenues $12,794 $12.915 §12.844

{in mithons of dollars)

m Profit J“vw-”m&_w* K

Broadcasting $ 144 $ 186 $ 127
Electronic Systems 262 329 197
Environmental 16 154 79
Financial Services 20 131 164
Industnes 165 264 225

Westinghouse Communities 122 78 3
The Knoll Group 26 28 15
Power Systems 283 323 204
Divested and Other (65) (16) (54)
Operating Profit before 2

Major Provision 973 1477 994
Maior Provision® (1,840) (975) —
Operating Profit (Loss) after

Major Provision $ (867) $ 502 § 994

*in 199 the major provision consisted of the valugtion provision at Westinghouse Financial
Services. Inc (WFS1) of $1 680 milion and the provision for costs associated with the worlforce
reduction of $160 million In 1990, the major provision comsisied solely of the valuation provision
of $975 million at WFSI



BUSINESS SUMMARY
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Breadoastin

‘ " ith a diversified port-
3 ’ A folio of entertainment,

sales and communica-

tions operations. Westinghouse Broad-
casting — known as Group W — holds
solid positons n &l its markets and has
distinguished itself from other broad-
casting companies by its record of
programming excellence, community
service and customer onentation

Despite these favorable competi-
tive positions, 1991 was a difficult year
in broadcastuing. especially in television,
due 1o the recession and the slowdown
in adverusing during the Persian Gulf
War. These faciors created the weakest
advertising climate in three decades.
As a result, the Broadcasting group's
revenues were down.

The Broadcasting group is com-
prised of: Group W Television, 2 lead-
ing television station group; Group W
Radio, the largest non-network radio
broadcaster in the nation; Group W
Productions, a television programming
and distribution company, and Group
W Satellite Communications, which
provides programming, marketing and
technical services to the cabie and
broadcast television industries. Also
included is Westinghouse Communica-

tions, which provides voice/data com-
munications 10 the Corporation as well
as 1o mid-sized industrial and service
companies.

Group W Television is composed
of five network-affiliated elevision
broadcasting stations that reach 10%
of the entire U.S. viewing audience.
The television group made significant
advances in realigning and streamlining
its Operations, Culling operating costs
by 12% in 1991 alone.

Group W Radio operates 17 radio
stations serving 11 major markets.
Vintually all of the group's stations hold
leadership pesitions in their program-
ming formats.

Group W Productions distributes
the well-known animated hit Teenage
Mutant Ninja Turtles and the weekly
reality programs Missing/ Reward, On-
Scene: Emergency Response and Home
Again With Bob Vila. The production
group also holds an equity position in
Castie Rock Entertainment, 2 leading
programming company that produced
the hit movie Ciry Slickers.

Group W Satetlite Communica-
tions (GWSC) serves the fastest grow-
ing segment of the media business —
cable programming. GWSC provides
sales, marketing a~d affiliate relations
support for The Nashville Network
(TNN), one of cabie's most successful
programming networks. The group's
Home Team Sports network, serving
the Washington-Baltimore area, passed

the 2.2 million subscriber mark.
When the economy rebounds,
broadcasting revenues and profits are
expected 10 grow.
With a rich history of success in
an ever-changing market, Group W
remains a vital contributor to the

strength of the Corporation.

. Electromic Systems l

he Westinghouse Electronic

Systems Group (ESG) con-

tinued its record as a world
leader in advanced electrorucs with
sales of $3.2 bilhon.

For more than 50 years, ESG has
served the United States by providing
advanced technology 10 the U.S. mili-
tary and its allies. The effectiveness of
that role became clear in 1991 as the
buildup of Desert Shield evolved mto
the action of Desert Storm.

Several hundred Westinghouse
employees were in-thester during that
conflict, either on active duty or sup-
porting thousands of ESG systems:
sensors that tracked every aspect of the
engagement — on the ground, in the
air, and from space: propulsion eguip-
ment for our ships; and radar jammers
that protected our pilots.




3 strategy o becomae the Bay Arwa's

csports startion,” KFMX brosdcasts
Dree of the top franchises i the ‘
merket—the 4Pers, Oskiand A's snd
Gotden Btats Warriorn.

f a7, Westinghouse test pltet Rich
7 BatSendor! inspects an F-16 radar
dertvetive on 3 Multh-Sensor Survel-

nce Alrcrefl. The new aircrsfl, siso
CDed Wt B intrared imaging

pystem, provides wide ares survel.

wnce of tarpets in applications such

e Grug WrierdicBon Bnd borter pEtr.

- 5

As pert of Westinghouse Brasdeass
ng's commitment to chiidren's pro- -
wamening, Group W Productions

3 - diatributes "Way Cool.” an upbest,

155 " umarous vartety series that

Tl testures sacially re-
wmh'}.
}b-im-o&‘




BUSINESS SUMMARY

While the war demonstrated the ef-
fectiveness of defense technology, it also
ca;;;:ed an era of heavy defense spending.
Faced with Department of Defense
(DoD) budget cuts, such as the cancella-
tion of the Navy's A-12 anack aircrafi,
ESG reduced its workforce and is contin-
uing an aggressive cost-control program.

Despite ¢t ~ overall downtumn in de-
fense budgets. ESG won several major
contracts duning the year, including
rada~ for the Ayr Force F-22 Advanced
Tactical Fighter. Navy contracts award-
ed 10 ESG included MK 48 and MK.-50
torpedoes. Airbomne Self-Protection
Jammers and an advanced gas turbine
engine system for ship propulsion. ESG
also won an important contract for the
development of aviomic systems for the
Army's Comanche helicopter

Throughout the year, ESG contin-
ued its strategy of diversification into the
commercial arena ESG's 1991 business
mix was 71% DoD and 29% non-DoD;
its goal is 10 achieve a 50-50 ratio.

Already a world leader in air traffic
control systems, Westinghouse is grow-
g a vanety of commercial businesses
related 10 its existing electromics exper-
tise. Law enforcement systems, secunity
sysiems. ransponation mansesment
systems and postal systems represent
promising commercial applications for
defense technologies.

Among the law enforcement
products ESG unveiled in 1991 is the
Multi-Sensor Surveillance Aircraft.
This aurcrafi uses an advanced radar

sensor and an infrared imaging system
for wide-area surveillance of land, sea
and airbomne targets — day or night.

ESG’s advances into the security
systems business have resulted in
more than 100,000 home-monitoring
accounts. This business was bolstered
by the acquisition of Schlage Electron-
ics — a leading manufacturer of prox-
imity electronic access control systems
for securing commercial and govern-
ment buildings and facilities.

In another commercial venture,
ESG is leveraging its electronic com-
mand and control capabilities 10 meet
freight and municipal vehicle tracking,
monitoring and scheduling require-
ments. An automatic vehicle location
sysiem, which helps to keep passengers
safe and buses on time, is now operat-
ing in Baltimore and the city of Denver
has contracted for a similar system.

ESG continues 1o penetrate the
information technology market with
Micros point-of-sale and airline reser-
vation terminals and advanced forms-
processing technology. Broadening its
mail-sorting equipment business be-
yond the U.S. Postal Service, the group
developed and began mark~ting “Sure
Post,” a modular mailroom processing
system to handle mail in commercial
and governmen! operations.

With a $4.4 billion backlog. ESG is
well-positioned to pursue new commer-
cial opportunities while continuing to
supply advanced electronic systems 1o
the defense industry.

he wide array of waste dis-
t posal regulations, combined
with regulatory enforcement,
is creating a growing demand for cer-
tain environmental services. Westing-
house provides a significant <hare of
these specialized services through its
Environmental Group.

The group was formed when exist-
ing Westinghouse hazardous- waste
businesses were merged in 1991 with
an eye toward becoming a leading
woridwide environmental service
company.

While the new organization has
significant positions within the industry,
with about 15% of the U S. capacity for
hazardous solid-waste incineration,
radical changes have occurred in the
group's segments. The engineering and
remediation segments of the business
were down as customers deferred ex-
penditures on construction and major
environmental cleanup projects. The
municipal segment was hard hit as
municipalities delayed or canceled
commitnents for waste-to-energy
plants. In addition, increased recycling
has begun 1o reduce the amount of
waste generated.

Responding to these changes, the
group's management redirected activi-
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BUSINESS SUMMARY

ties in 1991, In the waste-to-energy
business, costs were reduced substan-
tially, the organization was realigned
and cenain planned projects were
termuinated. In the electrical products
and services business, operations were
consohidated and the workforce was
reduced significantly 1o reflect the
depressed volume.

Hazardous-waste incineration 1s
one of the group’s more successful
businesses. A full-service hazardous-
waste incinerator was completed in
Tooele County, Utah. With a 200-10n-
per-day capacity, the facility will serve
the entire country, but particularly the
western U S,

In a further expansion of its

hazardous-waste incineration business,

the group obtained permits to offer
additional services at its Coffeyville,
Kan., facility. The group also signed

a large contract with the state of New
York for a major project mvolving site
remediation activities and hazardous-
waste incineration.

In the nuclear waste area, Westing-
house will evaluate and handle radioac-
tive wastes in Bulgaria and will provide

a low-level nuclear waste compaction
and storage system.

The group's substantial business
interests outside the U.S. — represent-
ing 30% of 1991 revenues — were
expanded during the year, including a
new environmental engineering opera-

tion established in Germany.

The Electnical Products and
Services business unit also supponed
nternational sales through subsidianes
and joint ventures in a dozen countries,
including Canada, Brazil, Venezuela,
Thailand, Saudi Arabia, Singapore and
Australia.

The Westinghouse Motor Company
derived more than 23% of 1ts sales
volume from international markets.
serving the global steel, mining, pulp
and paper, electric utility and petro-
chemical industnies with motors from
one to 35,000 horsepower

Determined 1o become one of the
leading environmental businesses in
the world, the Environmental Group is
expanding its capabilities in environ-
mental engineening, site remediation
and the rreatment and disposal of
hazardous and radioactive wasies.

a estinghouse Commu-
nities and Thermo
King. two of the four

Industnies group businesses, performed
well in 199] despite the difficult eco-
nomic environment. The other two
units — Distribution & Control and
Westinghouse Electrnic Supply Cor “any

—- were more affecied by econon,
conditions.

Overall, the group's sales and
operating profit decreased in 1991,

Westinghouse Communities” strat-
egy 1o develop unique, upscale proper-
ties has proved extremely successful.
Defying the national slowdown 1n resi-
dential construction, the unit nearly
doubied revenues compared to 1990,
with strong sales of luxury sites on both
Flonda coasts and at Bighomn, a new
development near Palm Springs, Calif.

The world's number-one supplier
of mobile temperature control for
trucks, trailers, buses and rail cars,
Thermo King increased 1991 sales
modestly, reflecting the continuing
U.S. recession. Operating profit was
shightly lower than in 1990.

Thermo King's international sales,
benefiting from the reunification of
Germany and new European regula-
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BUSINESS SUMMARY

tions for the transport of temperature-
sensitive products, were up over the
previous year's. For the first ume, the
majority of Thermo King's sales were
mternational. One milestone was a joint
venture with Dalian Refrigeration in the
People’s Republic of China, Construc-
tion of a Westinghouse-owned facility
there will begin early in 1992 with
production scheduled to begin early

in 1993,

Sales and operating profit for the
Distribution & Control (D&C) business
unit, a supplier of electrical-distribu-
tion, circuit-protection and control
products, were off sharply compared
1o 1990. The declines were attributable
to recessions in the U.S., Brazil and
Canada and the continuing softness in
construction-related markets. Careful
investmen! management. however, al-
lowed the unit fo remain a strong cash
contributor to the Corporation.

D&C continued its technuiogical
leadership with a significant advance in
control technology. A new motor starter
calied “Advantage” offers substantially
longer life, a lower cost and a smaller
size than conventional motor starers
Key 10 this leap in technology is 8 mi-
crochup developed by the Westinghouse
Science and Technology Center.

One of the «/gest electrical whole-
salersinthe US,, \.\'esunghousc Elec-
tric Supply Company (WESCO) felt the
brunt of the soft construction market in
1991 Operating profit was sharply
lower. In late 1991, WESCO stream-

lined s organization and implemented
the most advanced distribution, inven-
tory management and product procure-
ment methods 1o improve customer
satisfaction.

Overall, Industnies group businesses
enjoy strong positions in the markets
they serve and have taken actions neces-
sary 1o improve those positions in the

future.

rchitects, designers, facility

managers, corporate pur-

chasers — these key cus-
tomer groups reacted favorably in 1991
10 the extensive product offering created
through formation of The Knoll Group.
The merging of Westinghouse Furniture
Svstems, Shaw-Walker, Reff and Knoll
Internavonal under the Knoll name
enables Westinghouse to provide an ex-
panded range of products and services
unmatched in the office furniture indus-
try. These services include the umigue
resources of Westinghouse's Science
and Technology Center and Productivity
and Quality Center.

During the year, the group inte-

grated four sales. marketing and distn-
bution organizations into a single unit

in order 10 reduce its cost structure and

SR AR ARG N T T TR DR SN M TS R ST RO i . e B ARG S AR RN

improve access 10 customers. It began
consohidating worldwide manufactuning
operations m North Amenca and
Europe 10 achieve lower break-even
and product costs. Employment was
reduced by 14%.

At the same time, the furniture
group invesied in new state-of-the-art
production equipment to further im-
prove its cost position on new products
scheduled for introduction over the next
WO years.

Revenues increased significantly
due to the 1990 acquisitions, while
operating profit was down due to the
weak economy and curtaiied govern-
ment spending. Despite these adverse
conditions, Knoll improved market
share duning the year through aggres-
sive sales and marketing efforns.

Looking ahead. The Knoll Group
1s well-posinoned to capitalize on
anticipated growth opportunities in
the $22 billion global office fumiture
market.

ver since the Corporation’s

founding over 100 years

ago, the business of generat-
ing power has been a mainstay of
Westinghouse.
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BUSINESS SUMMARY

Today, the Power Systems group
offers products and services that span
the full range of the global power
generation market.

The group took firm actions in
1991 to counter the effects of the reces-
sion and increased competition. Power
Systems management initiated an
AgEressive Cost-improvement program,
including workforce reductions, spend-
ing cuts and productivity improvements.

With sales representing more than
20% of the Corporation’s total, the
group offers products that use nearly
every known fuel — oil, natural gas,
coal, and uranium — and offers every-
thing from plant design to the manufac-
ture of power eguipment to the mainte-
nance of existing power plants.

Power Systems ' two business
units, Power Generation and Energy
Sysiems. serve utilities in 43 countries
The group's markets are large and
growing. In the U.S. alone, increasing
demand for electricity will create a
20% expansion of the current generat-
ing base in the nex! ten years. Intema-
tional markets will grow even faster.

Most of the near-term growth will
come from natural gas-fired combus-
tion turbine or combined-cycle plants,
benefiting the Power Generation unit,
but ' 'er demand may also require the
construction of a new generation of
nuclear plants. The Energy Systems
unit will be ready for that demand with
the AP600, & simplified, economical
light-water reactor now in development.

Westinghouse 1s set 10 participate
in the growth of intermnational markets
through a strong network of alliances.
More than one-third of Power Systems’
1991 orders were outside the U.S.

The Power Generation unit sup-
plies and services steam and combus-
tion turbine generators and total power
plant projects for the production of
electricity. It is also developing and
commercializing advanced power gen-
eration technologies.

The unit soid 3,600 megawatts of
power generation capacity 1o utilities
and non-utility generators in 1991 and
1t was one of the fastest-growi g busi-
nesses in the Corporation. with sales up
26% over 1990. Among the year's
milestones were a $350 million contract
1o supply two power plants 1o Korea
and shipment of the first 501D5 com-
bustion turbine from the unit’s new
North American factory, an integrated
manufactuning network.

The unit, assisted by the Westing-
house Science and Technology Center,
also contracted to provide dipole
magnets for the U.S. Department of
Energ . 's planned superconducting
supercollider.

The Energy Systems business unit
1s involved primarily in equipping and
servicing nuclear power plants, provid-
ing nuclear fuel to utilities and fuel
components to other manufacturers. It
also supplies process control sysiems
to utilities and industnes.

Significant 1991 orders included

14

an important contract for nuclear instru-
mentation and control at the Sizewell B
nuclear power station in the United
Kingdom.

With 425 nuclear power plants
operating woridwide, representing
an annual service market of nearly
$30 billion, Energy Systems is working
to strengthen its global position.

With a commitment to product und
process improvements, a backiog that
increased by $300 milhon to reach
$5.1 billion, and a strong position in
expanding markets, Power Systems
1s seeded for growth well into the
21st century.

hroughout 1991, Westing

house management took

decisive steps to deal with
significant problems at Westinghouse
Financial Services. Inc. (WFSI). These
actions included a pre-tax valuation
provision against earmings totaling
$1.6K bilbon.

A strategy to downsize the opera-

tions through the orderly disposition of
assets 15 being implemented and a




Bart Withers, right, of the Wolf Creek
Muciear Operrting Corporation In
Burfington. Kan. s pictured with
Westinghouse's Max Wood in the
Ueining bcmwd'n'oﬂér'.t
penersting stetion. Westinghouse
provided the nucies stesm supply
syetem for the plant, which holds the
wurid record for continuous operstion

tor hght water resctors.

Operztor Roxanne Dubsy monitors
the newly-instalied Westinghouse
WOPF Process Control System st the
East Bay Municipal Utiiity Gatrict's
wartewster restment piart n
Omkland, Calti. One of the lergest
such faclites in the U L. M serves
60C 000 peopie and has & capacity of
€18 million galions of water per day.
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BUSINESS SUMMARY

change n top management was made
Leo W. Yochum, former chief financial
officer of Westinghouse, was appoinied
charrman and chief executive officer
of WFSI

The group made progress dispos-
ing of assets duning 1991, including
marketable secunuies, ceram corporaie
lending and leasing receivables, and
commercial and residential real estate
loans aau properuies

In 1991, WFSI sold $646 million
of marketable secunities; only $46 mil-
lion remained 1o be sold at vear-end

WFS1 announced its intention 10
raise more than $1 billion in cash
through the liquidation of corporate
lending, leasing and real estate assets
More than $700 milhon in cash was
raised during the fourth quarter of
1991. The remainder is expected 10 be
raised early in 1992

WFSI reduced total employment
by 16% in 1991. Lower operating
expenses are planned for the group

WFSI] will continue 1o be down-
sized with a focus on managing both

debt levels and eamings performance

estinghouse 1§ recog-
‘w & nized worldwide as
: an innovalor in pro-

dactivity and quality improvement and
technology development

The Corporation's efforts in these
areas are supported by a wealth of tai-
ent at the Productivity and Quality
Center (PQC) and the Science and
Technology Center (STC).

STC’s scientists and engineers
have helped the Corporation maintamn
a leading posihon among American
companies in U.S. patents issued

STC achievements in 1991 includ-
ed advances in microelectronic materi-
als and circuitry and the development
of a diaraond-coating process 1o protect
infrared sensors mounted on high-speed
aircraft. In addition, STC's research in
such technologies as hot-gas cleaning
and sohd oxide fuel cells promises
more economical methods for conven-
ing fossil fuels inte energy with mini-
mal environmental impact

The Productivity and Quality Cen-
1er helped Westinghouse business units
improve processes and profitability in
1991. In addition, 1t increased its activi-
ties with both customers and suppliers
of the Corporation as well as with other

outside chients

1e

T R TS,

The combined effonts of PQC and
the business units have made Westing-
house the only company selected as a
finahist or winner of the Malcolm
Baldnge National Quality Award every

year of the award’s exisience.

Enginesr John Lichaver monitors the

sutometed inspection of nuciear fuel
peliets #1 Westinghouse's Sclence and
Technology Conter near Pretsburgh.
The surtomated machine-vision inspec.
tion systermn was designed by Westing-
house engineers for the Corporation’s
Commercial Nuciear Fuel Division in
Columbia, §.C.




Finanwciar Review

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Cwerview
3

The Corporation reported a net loss of $1,086 million for
1991 or $3.46 a share. Net income was $268 million in
1990 and $922 mil%on in 1989. Eamings per share were
$0.91 for 1990 and $3.15 for 1989. Valuation provisions
recorded at Financial Services of $1.680 million and $975
mallion, before provisions for taxes, reduced net income
for 1991 and 1990. Ste Segment Results — Financial
Services for a discussion of valuation provisions. Also
incleded in 1991 net income was a $160 miliion pre-tax
charge for a corporate-wide workforce reduction. See
note 22 to the financial statements. At the January 29,
1992 meeting of the Corporation's Board of Directors, the
quarterly dividend on Westinghouse Common Stock was
reduced from $0.35 10 $0.18 per share. This action was
taken as part of the Corporation's program to strengthen
its balance sheet by reducing debt and building equ Iy

Sales and operating revenues were $12,794 million in
1991 compared 10 $12,915 million in 1990 and $12.844
mithion in 1989. Depressed economic conditions reduced
growth in 1991. In light of current economic conditions,
the Corporation does not anticipate that there will be Sig
mficant growth in consolidated sales for the fuli year
1992 over 1991 levels

Segmem Results

Operations Excluding Financial Services —
1991 Versus 1990
Broadcasting sales for 199) decreased 3% compared 1o
1990. This decline was due prnimarnily 1o & drop in telev)
$10n advertising revenue caused by the Persian Gulf War
and the recession. The decrease in television revenues
was partially offset by increased revenues at Group W
Productions and Group W Satzllite Communications
Operating profit for the year declined 27% compared to
the 1990 level due primarily to the reduced levels of tele
Vision advertising. Included in 1991 operating profit was
$& million of the workforce reduction costs. Exc luding
that amount, operating profit decreased 23% in 1991
compared to 1990

Electronic Systems sales increased shghtly in 1991
compared 10 1990 due principally 1o the termination set
tiement on the camier based A-12 aircrafi program this
yeai. Operating profit declined 41% from 1990 due to
lower margins resulting from an unfavorable sales mix in
govemnment production and development contracts and
fugher strategic costs incurred to expand the non-

Department of Defense (DOD) business. Also included in
1991 operating profit was $69 mullion of the workforce
reduction costs. Exciuding that amount, operating profit
decreased 20% in 1991 compared 10 1990. The recentiy
proposed reductions in DOD’s 1993 fiscal year budget, if
enaceed as proposed, are not expected to have a material
adverse effect on segment business. However, until budget
measures are actually enacted, it s difficult 10 predict the
effect on the segment

Environmental sales declined 12% in 1991 compared
to 1990 due to depressed economic conditions. Industrial
repair and engineering service businesses showed
declines in the U.S. and Canada. The operating loss in
1991, compared to a profit in 1990, was due to reduced
sales and construction delays and cost overruns in the
waste-to-energy business. Included in 1991 operating
profit was $23 milhion of the workforce reduction costs
Excluding that amount, operating profit decreased 90% in
1991 compared to 1990

Industnies saies decreased 5% in 1991 compared to
1990 due to the continued economic slump in the U.S
commercial and residential construction industry. The
depressed economies of Canada and Brazil also con-
tnbuted to the decrease in 199] sales Operating profit for
1991 decreased 46% due principally to the reduced sales
volume. Included in 1991 operating profit was $23 mil-
lion of the workforce reduction costs. Exc luding that
amount, operating profit decreased 38% in 1991 com
pared 10 1990. Sales for Westinghouse Communities, Inc
(WCI) increased 83% in 1991 due primarily 1o higher lev
els of commercial and residential land sales. Operatin £
profit for WCI in 199] increased 56% due principally to
the higher volume

The Knoli Group sales increased 59%
pared to 1990 reflecting a full vear of operations of Knol
International, Inc., which was acquired in August 1990
Operating profit for 1991 declined slightly from 1990 due
primarily to the impact of deep discount levels caused by
compeutive pressures in the weakened economy

Power Systems sales for 1997 improved by 9% over
1990 due principally to increased demand for power gen-
ration equipment. Operating profit for 1991 decreased
by 19% compared to last year due to the recognition of
revenue from significant levels of licensing and plamt
completions in 1990, parually offset by increased profits
from the higher volume in the power generation busi-
nesses. Included in 1991 operating profit was $22 million
of the workforce reduction costs. Excluding that amount.
operating profit decreased 12% in 1991 compared to 1990




Operations Excluding Financial Services —
1990 Versus 1989

Broadcasting sales increased 14% for the year due primar-
ily 10 the December 1989 acquisition of the Legacy and
Metropolitan Broadcast:ng Companies. Operating profit
for 1990 increased 46% due 10 the inclusion of restructur-
ing provisions of $41 million in 1989 Excluding restruc-
turing, operating profit increased 11% due primanly to the
acquired radio siations.

Electronic Systems sales increased 8% reflecting
growth in production programs. Operating profit
increased 67% due 10 the inclusion of restructuring provi-
sions of $74 million in 1989. Excluding restructuring,
operating profit increased 21% due primarily to higher
revenues.

Environmental sales increased 10% in 1990 primanly
in the environmental services and industrial repair ser-
vices businesses. Operating profit almost doubled in 1990
due to the inclusion of restructuring provisions of $35
million in 1989. Excluding restructuring, operating profit
increased 35% due 1o increased volume and higher fees
from the Department of Energy (DOE) for managing the
vanious government-owned facilities.

Industries 1990 sales decreased S%. Operating profit
increased 17% in 1990 due to the inclusion of restructur-
ing provisions of $23 million in 1989. Excluding restruc-
turing, operating profit increased 6%. Sales for WCl
increased 11% in 1990 compared to 1989. Operating
profit more than doubled in 1990 due 1o improved operat-
ing results and the inclusion of $19 million of restructur-
ing provisions in 1989. Excluding restructuring, operating
profit increased 39%.

The Knoll Group sales more than doubled in 1990 com-
pared to 1989 due primarily to the acquisitions of Reff
Inc. and Shaw-Walker in the fourth quarter of 1989.
Operating profit also increased significantly in 1990 due
10 the 1989 acquisitions.

Power Systems 1990 sales increased 22% because of
significant improvement in the steam and combustion tur-
bine businesses. Operating profit increased 58% in 1990
due to the inclusion of restructuring provisions of $52
million in 1989. Excluding restructuring, operating profit
increased 26% due primarily to volume increases.

Financial Services

In February 1991, the Board of Directors of the
Corporation adopted a new strategy which entailed the
downsizing of Westinghouse Financial Services, Inc.’s
{WFSI) business and a reduction of its exposure 1o under-
performing and higher risk assets. That decision was
based on continuing detenoration in the U.S. economy.
and weakness in several of the markets served by WFSI
and Westinghouse Credit Corporation (WCC), notably
real estate, highly ieveraged corporate transactions, and
high yield securities. The changing and unceriain business
conditions in those markets made it prudent, in maiiage-
ment’s view, to alter WFSI's strategy of holding underper-
formung assets for long-term resolution to a strategy that
entails the near-term liguidation of certain of those assets.

As a result, assets totalling $3.381 million were classified
as assets held for sale or restructuring. To reflect the
decline in the then estimated realizable value of those
assets, a pre-tax valuation provision of $975 million was
recognized in 1990.

Through September 1991, WFSI made significant
progress in disposing of high yield marketable securities.
However, management experienced only imited progress
in hiquidating or restructunng real estate and corporate
financing assets. The real estate and highly leveraged cor-
porate financing markets continued to weaken and suf-
fered from a lack of liquidity for refinancing. This lack of
liquidity, coupled with a national oversupply of commer-
cial real estate properties and the prolonged recession,
contributed 10 increased loan defaults and further
depressed property and asset values. WFSI's portfolio
investments were similarly adversely affected.

In response to these conditions, management conducted
an extensive review of WFSI's assets and in October
1991, management identified $3.140 million of additional
assets for classification as assets held for sale or restruc-
turing. To reflect the worsened markets and credit liquid-
ity problems and management’s experience in hquidating
or restructuring assets held for sale or restructuring. a
$1.680 miilion pre-tax valuation provision was recorded
to reduce the carrying values of all assets held for sale or
restructuring. Such valuation provision assumed an
orderly liquidation over a reasonable marketing period,
which in some cases may take as long as five years. Sale
or restructuring of these assets in a bulk transaction or on
a more accelerated basis could result in lower realized
values.

Management believes that the stralegy 1o manage its
existing asset portfolios 10 downsize and improve perfor-
mance will reduce nisk and strengthen its balance sheet.
However, WFS] has issued various loan or investment
commitments, guarantees. standby lenters of credit. and
standby commitments. Depending on market conditions,
funding of approximately 43% of these outstanding com-
mitments may be required in 1992. Further discussion of
outstanding financing commitments appears in note 19 1o
the financial statements. In addition, in order 10 preserve
or strengthen existing portfolios, WFSI may provide cer-
tain financing services on a limited basis.

Financial Services revenues for 1991 declined 12%
compared to 1990 reflecting a reduction of portfolio
assets through sales and reduced volume, an increase in
underperforming assets, and a reduction in equily gains.
Revenues for 1990 increased 14% over 1989 due primar-
ily 10 higher levels of loans at WCC. The 1991 and 1990
operating losses of $1.660 million and $844 million are
due to the valuation provisions recorded in each year.

Margin as a percent of average portfolio investment has
been declining in recent periods. Margin in 1991 was 2.2%
compared to 3.0% for 1990. This decline is primanly the
result of hugher levels of nonearning assets and real estate
properties owned. The decline also reflects an increase in
partnerships and cther equity investments not expected 10
produce a current return.



WFSI's assets consist of receivables, real estate proper-
nes owned, investments in partnerships and other entities,
and marketable securities. At December 31, 1991, gross
receivables totalled $8. 596 million and included $2,910
million classified as assets held for sale or restructunng.
Total receivabies included $3.949 million of real estate
receivables and $3,460 million of corporate financing
transactions. The remaining receivables relate to leasing
transactions.

Real estate receivables consist of loans for commercial
and residential real estate properties. At December 31,
1991, first mortgages on income producing properties
compnised 87% of total real estaie receivables. Hotels and
motels secured 27% of the receivables at December 31,
1991, apartments secured 15%, office buildings secured
11%. and shopping centers secured 10%. Of these proper-
ties, 15% were located in California, 12% in Flonda, and
12% in [llinois. No other significant geographic concen-
trations exist. Excluding the receivables of WCI and
Westinghouse Savings Corporation (WSAV), & subsidiary
of WFSI, the largest single borrower exposure in the real
estate portfolio totalled $296 million at December 31,
1991: average burrower exposure was $12 million.

At December 31, 1990, first mortgages on income-
producing properties comprised 90% of real estate receiv-
ables. Also at December 31, 1990, hotels and motels
secured 22% of the receivables and apartments secured
14%. The remaining properties included shopping centers
and office buildings. Of these properties, 18% were
located in California, 16% in Hlinois, and 13% in Florida.
There were no other significant geographic concentra-
tions. The largest singie borrower exposure in the real
estate portfolio totalied $302 million at December 31,
1990; average borrower exposure, excluding WCI and
WSAV, was $16 mullion.

Corporate financing receivables are generally consid-
ered highly leveraged financing transactions. A transac-
tion is highiy leveraged if the related financing involves a
buyout, acquisition, or recapitalization of an existing
business, and involves a high debt-to-equity ratio.

At December 31, 1991, 53% of corporate financing
receivables were senior obligations of the borrowers, and
47% were subordinated. Variable-amourt commercial
line-of -credit loans secured by the borrow <=3’ inventory
or receivables represented 20% of the corporate receiv-
ables. An additional 33% of corporate receivables repre-
sented fixed-amount loans secured by specified assets,
general assets, stock, or other tangible assets of the
borrower. The remaining corporate receivables were
unsecured.

Borrowers in the corporate portfolio, generally middle
marke! companies, are located primarily throughout the
U.S. Manufacturing, retail trade, financial services, and
media represent the significant industry concentrations in
this portfolio. Exposure to the largest borrower totalled
$182 million at December 31, 1991 average borrower
exposure was $19 million.

"

At December 31, 1990, 49% of corporate financing
receivables were senior obligations of the borrowers, and
51% were subordinated. Approximately 13% of corporate
receivables at December 31, 1990 represented variable-
amount commercial line-of-credit loans. Fixed-amount
loans comprised 36% of corporate receivabies. Exposure
to the largest single borrower totalled $163 million; aver-
age borrower exposure was $15 million.

Real estate properties owned include properties
acquired through foreclosure proceedings or represent
“in-substance” foreclosures. Properties are carnied at the
lower of former loan amount or estimated net realizabie
value. The properties are being operated by WFSI or con-
tracted professional management until their sale. At
December 31, 1991, real estate properties owned totalling
$730 million were classified as assets held for sale or «
res*ructuring.

At December 31, 1991, investments in partnerships and
other entities totalled $677 mullion of which $155 million
were classified as assets held for sale or restructuring.

At December 31, 1991, marketable securities totailed
$498 million, of which $452 million are assets of WSAV,
and consist of U.S. and other government obligations and
morigage backed securities. Marketable securities held
for sale or restructuring decreased 93% from $654 million
at December 31, 1990 10 $46 miliion at December 31,
1991. This decrease is attributable to sales during 1991 of
nearly all the high yield corporate marketable debt securi-
ties held in the portfolio at December 31, 1990. During
1991, proceeds from sales of investments in debt securi-
ties totalled $535 million. Gress gains of $24 million and
gross losses of $103 million were realized on those sales.

Noneaming receivables at December 31, 1991 otalled
$1.512 million, an increase of $960 million from vear end
1990. Reduced earming receivables totalled $1,065 mul-
lion at December 31, 1991, a decrease of $229 million
since December 31, 1990, Of these amounts, 80% of the
noneaming receivables and 65% of the reduced earning
receivables relate to assets held for sale or restructuring.
Reduced eaming receivables consist generally of real
estate loans which were renegotiatexd, the income from
which will fluctuate depending on the performance of the
properties. Income earned during 1991 on nonearning and
reduced earning receivables at December 31, 1991 repre-
sented yields of 3.7% and 5.9%. respectively, versus an
average interest cost of 7.4%. The reduction in revenues
for 1991 resuiting from nonearning and reduced eaming
receivables at December 31, 1991 was $169 million.

Management believes that under current economic con-
ditions, the allowance for credit losses and valuation
allowances at Decemiber 31, 1991 should be adequate 1o
cover losses that are inherent in the vanious portfolios.
However, no assurance can be given that a further lack of
hiquidity in the markets in which WFSI's customers oper-
ate, a further or more prolonged downturn in the econ-
omy, or other adverse conditions will not have a negative
effect on the ability of borrowers to repay and on asset
values generally. This could result in increased credit
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losses and additional reserves to reflect asset revaluations,
and could have a negative impact on WFSI's ability to
sell assets.

Other income and Expense ftems — Consolidated

Other income for 1991 decreased to $5 million from the
$173 million reported in 1990 due primarily to reduced
gains recognized from the sale of assets. Additionally,
losses incurred from the disposition of marketable secur-
ves and foreign exchange losses contributed to the
decrease in other income.

Other income for 1990 was $56 million higher than the
$117 million reported in 1989 due to higher gains recog-
nized on the sales of assets and securites, and to
improved operating results from affil:ates.

Interest expense decreased $13 million in 1991 due pri-
marily to lower effective interest rates on average out-
standing debt compared with last year. In 1990, interest
expense increased $12 mullion because of higher average
outstanding debt compared 10 1989.

The Corporation’s 1991 benefit for income taxes was
2.3% of loss before income taxes and minority interest in
mcome of consolidated subsidiaries. The 1990 and 1989
provisions for taxes were 33.6% and 26.7% of income
before income taxes and minority mterest in income of

" consolidated subsidiaries. The changes in effective tax
rates for each year were due primarily to the Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 96 limita-
tions on recognition of deferred tax benefits. See note 3 to
the financial statements.

Minority interest in income of consolidated sub-
sidiaries was about even with 1990, and includes $13 mil-
hion in each year related to dividends on WCC'’s preferred
stock. Minonty interest in income of consolidated sub-
sidiaries was $13 million in 1989, nearly all related 10 a
Joint venture with Asea Brown Boverni.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

Operaticns Excluding WFSI

Cash and cash equivalents for operations excluding
WFSI decreased $411 million compared to a decrease of
$132 miilion in 1990. Excluding the capital contribution
to WFSI, cash flow increased $994 million in 1991.

The consolidated debt-1o-total capital ratio was 76%
and 77% at December 31, 1991 and 1990. A debt-to-total
capital ratio of this magnitude reflects the more highly
leveraged capital structure common to finance companies.
The debt-to-1otal capital ratio at December 31, 1991 and
1990, excluding WFSI's debt, was 51% and 43%. The net
debt-1o-1otal capital ratio, excluding WFSI's debt. at the
same dates was 47% and 32%.

At December 31, 1991, short-term debt totalled $2,577
million, a $594 million increase from the 1990 level.
Commercial paper outstanding at year-end 199] was
$1.442 mullion, a decrease of $344 million from
December 31, 1990. This reduction was principally the

result of the application of the net proceeds of the $250
million 87s% notes due 2001 issued in June 1991.

In December 1991, the Corporation signed a three-year
$6 billicn revolving credit facility with a syndicate of 49
domestic and international banks. The facility provides
for short-term borrowings and serves as backup for com-
mercial paper issued by the Corporation and WCC. Al
December 31, 1991, consolidated borrowings under the
facility totalled $1,990 million, of which $985 mullion
was borrowed by the Corporation and $1,005 million was
borrowed by WCC. The Corporation's borrowing was
used pnmarily 1o fund the fourth quarter equity contribu-
tion to WCC. Borrowings under the facility by the
Corporation and WCC are guaranieed by each other.
Covenants under the facility place restrictions on the
incurrence of liens, the amount of debt on a consolidated
basis and at the subsidiary level, and the amount of con-
tingent Liabilities. The covenants also require the mainte-
nance of a leverage ratio, a minimum coverage ratio, and
mintmum consolidated net worth. The facility replaces all
revolving credit agreements previously held by the
Corporation and WCC. At December 31, 1991, the
revolving credit facility had sufficient capacity 1o replace
all outstanding commercial paper net of cash and cash
equivalents issued by both the Corporation and WCC. See
note 12 ro the financial statements.

Long-term debt increased $333 mullion 1o $1,264 mil-
lion at December 31, 1991. The increase is due primarily
1o the sale in June 1991 of $250 million 8% notes under
the $750 million shelf registration filed in 1989. Inierest
rate swap agreements have changed the effective interest
rate for the first two years of the notes’ term to a vanable
rate based on the 30-day commercial paper rate. Also dur-
ing 1991, the Corporation issued $124 million of
medium-term notes under the $750 miliion shelf registra-
tion filed in 1989. The medium-term notes range in matur-
ity from two to 10 years and have interest rates ranging
from 7.5% 10 9.4%. The Corporation filed an additional
shelf registration for $500 million of debt securities in
June 1991. At December 31, 1991, the Corporation's total
availability under shelf registrations was $626 million.

During 1991, Moody's Investors Service (Moody's)
and Standard and Poor’s (5 & P) lowered their ratings on
the Corporation’s debt. Fitch Investor’s Service Inc.
(Fitch) initially rated the Corporation’s debt in 1991. The
following table summarizes the agencies’ ratings of the
Corporation’s debt at the beginning and end of 1991.




Reasons for the downgrades cited by the agencies
included expected lower levels of cash flow protecuon for
the debt, a weakened financial profile resulting from the
restructunng actions, and financial pressures piaced on
the Corporation due to the weakened asset quality at
WFSI. The Corporation believes its current ratings will
not have a material adverse affect on its ability to borrow
funds or on its operations or financial position. However,
future downgrades 1o the commercial paper ratings may
diminish access to these markets and cause increased
reliance on the revolving credit facility.

In 1991, the Corporation initiated several steps to
enhance its support of WOC. A new support agreement
was signed by both parties, superseding the previous
agreements, and reduires the Corporation 1o provide
financial support necessary to adjust WCC's consolidated
tota! debt4o-equity ratio 1o not more than 6.5-10-1 at the
end of a prior quarter, and maintain WCC's minimum
equity at the end of a prior quarter at an amount of $1 bil-
lion. The agreement wil! continue until terminated by
three years prior notice. In a separate agreement which
became effective in December 1991, the Corporation
guaranteed WCC's then outstanding and future commer-
cial paper borrowings. This agreement may be terminated
upon 90 days prior writien notice.

PursummﬂrCorpomjm‘spriongrmwuwsup-
port WCC's equity, the Corporation transferred cash of
$525 milkion in the first quarter and $880 million in the
fourth quarter of 1991 to reduce WCC's adjusted total
debt-1o-equity ratio 10 6.5-10- 1. Additional equity contri-
butions may be required during 1992. The need for addi-
tional contributions is dependent on the level of funding
of future commitments, the results of the asset dispc. “ion
program at WFSI, fluctuations in the value of WCC's
assets, and its debt level.

In May 1991, the Corporation sold 21,500,000 shares
of newly-issued common stock at a price of $26.50 per
share. Net proceeds of $551 million were used 10 reduce
short-term debt.

In 1991, the Corporation announced its intention 1o
raise an additional $900 mullon in equity through various
methods. In October 1951, the Corporation contributed
22.645.000 shares of common stock held in treasury 10
the pension plan. The pension plan trustee valued the
stock at $375 million at the date of contribution. Prepaid
pensions were increased by that amount. On January 29,
1992 the Corporation announced that it intends to issue
approximately $500 mullion of convertible preferred
stock.

Capita! expenditures for 1992 are expected 1o be lower
than the 1991 level. Funding for future capital require-
ments will be provided from operations, borrowings, and
the capital markets available to the Corporation.
Management believes that sufficient capital resources will
be available from such sources to fund operations for the
foreseeabie future. The final determination of the source
of funds will depend on the impact of normal business
vanables 1o which the Corporation 1s subject.

WFSI

WFSI cash and cash equivalents increased $479 million
in 1991 compared to a decrease of $86 million in 1990,
Excluding the capital contribution from the parent, WFSI
cash flow decreased $926 million in 1991

During 1991, WFSI decreased its total debt by $2.000
million. Short-term debt totalled $4.155 muilion ar year-
end 1990 compared to $3,299 million at year-end 1991,
Long-term debt totalled $5,160 million at December 31,
1990 and $4.016 miliion at December 3, 1991.

As a direct issuer, WCC placed over $76 billion of
commercial paper during 1991. In conjunction with its
strategy to downsize, borrowings under various revolving
credy agreements during 1991 were used 10 pay down
commercial paper. At Decamber 31, 1991, commercial
paper comprised 30.1% of 1otal debt, compared 10 55.1%
at December 31, 1990. The borrowings from these credit
agreements were replaced by borrowings from the three-
year $6 billion revolving credit facility. At December 31,

1991, WCC had borrowed $1,005 million under this facil-

ity. Thus facility will continue 1o be a source of borrow-
ings, if required.

Long-term debt decreased $1,144 million during 1991.
The decrease is due primarily 10 the paydown of commer-
cial paper that was classified as long-term debt and the
retirement of the vanable-rate bank loan due in 1992, par-
tially offset by the issuance of additional medium-term
notes.

During 1991, both Moody's and S & P lowered cenain
of their ratings of WCC's securities, citing concerns about
the economic risks of its portfolio and future payments
from the Corporation under its support obligation, which
could be impacied by the timing of a recovery of the
Corporation’s core business activities. Fitch initially rated
WCC’s debt during 1991. Future ratings downgrades
could cause WCC to incur increased borrowing costs. The
following table summarizes the agencies’ ratings of
WCC's securities at the beginning and end of 1991,

At January 1, 199]

Commercial paper Prume- | Al Nox rated
Semior long-term dete A2 Ees Nox rated
Preferres .ock ¥ A Not rmed
At Decembe - 31, 1991

Commercial pape: Prime-2 Al F-1
Semor long-enmm detn A3 A A
Preferred Stock ol A Not rated

In addition 10 the commercial paper previously dis-
cussed, WOC has access to £250 million of sterling com-
mercial paper or its U.S. dollar equivalent of
Euro-commercial paper. At December 31, 1991, the
revolving credit facility had sufficient capacity to replace
all outstanding commercial paper net of cash and cash
equivalents issued by both the Corporation and WOC.
WFSI maintains the ability to issue senior or subordinated
debi through its subsidianes. At December 31, 1991,

sy

Kig ohut .

1
L




s

SETER TN 2T

TR

- d—

$2.199 million was available for the future issuance of debt
securities under a 1990 shelf registration which became
effective in 1991.

Pursuant to the operating strategy, funding for WFSI's
future capital requirements will be provided from opera-
tons. the liquidations of portfolio investments, and from
capital markets available 1o WFSI. In addition, funding
may also be provided from capital infusions, loans, or
advances from the Corporation. The Corporation may alsy
guarantee fundings provided by others. The final determi-
nation of the source of funds will depend on the impact of
normal business variables to which the Corporation, WFSI,
and WCC are subject.

With regard to environmental marters, particularly remedial
actions under the federal superfund law, the Corporation
has been named as a potentially responsible party at numer-
ous sites located throughout the country. In many instances,
however, the Corporation is either not a responsible party
or its site involvement 1s very limited. Depending upon the
development of further information. the Corporation may
have varying degrees of clean-up responsibilities a1 54 of
these sites. With regard to clean-up costs, in many cases the
Corporation will share these costs with other responsible
parties and the Corporation believes that any liability
incurred with respect to clean-up costs will be satisfied
over a number of years. In addition, the Corporation contin-
ues to implement a 1985 Consent Decree relating 1o the
remediation of six sites in Bioomington, Indiana.
Applications for permits 10 build an incinerator required by
this Consent Decree are pending. Revenues from the opera-
tion of the incinerator are expected 10 offset in part the
Corporation’s clean-up costs. It should also be noted that in
1987, Westinghouse filed an action in New Jersey against
over 100 insurance companies seeking recovery for these
and other environmental liabilities. The first trial, regarding
an environmental site in New Jersey, is scheduled to begin
in the fourth quarter of 1992. Management continues 10
believe that the ultimate aggregate cost of environmental
remediation by the Corporation will not result in a material
adverse effect on its future financial condition or results of
operations.

At present. there are 10 pending actions brought by utili-
ties claiming a substantial amount of damages in connec-
tion with alleged tube degradation in steam generators sold
by the Corporation as components for nuclear stean supply
systems. Management believes that the Corporation has
meritorious defenses 10 these actions. Westinghouse has
also entered into agreements with five utility plant owners
groups which toll the statute of imitations regarding their
steam generator tube degradation claims. Westinghouse has
notified its insurance carmiers of the 10 pending steam gen-
erator actions and the claims.

The Corporation continues 1o work with its customers
and 1o respond 1o requests from the Nuciear Regulatory
Commission regarding vanous Sieam gencrator issues,

involving detection of steam generator tube anomalies,
plugging of tubes, or other remedial responses 10 steam
generator tubes displaying anomalies.

The Corporation is defending 13 class action, denvative
and individual lawsuits brought by shareholders of the
Corporation against the Corporation, WFSL. WCC, and/or
cenain present and former directors and officers of the
Corporation, as well as other unrelated parties. One lawsuit
is pending in each of the following jurisdictions: the U.S.
District Court (USDC) for the Southern District of New
York, the USDC for the Southemn District of Texas, a
Pennsylvania state court, and a Texas state court. The
remaining nine actions are pending in the USDC for the
Western District of Pennsylvania. Together, these actions
aliege various federal securities law and common law VIO~
lations arising out of (i) alleged misstatements or omissions
contained in the Corporation’s public filings concerning the
financial condition of the Corporation, WFSI, and WCC in
connection with 2 $975 million charge to camings
announced on February 27, 1991, a public offering of
Westinghouse common stock in May 1991, and a $1.680
million charge to earnings announced on October 7, 1991,
and (ii) the Corporation’s acquisition of substantially all the
assets of Knoll Intemnational, Inc. and Knoll Nevada, Inc. in
exchange for Westinghouse common stock in August 1990
(these claims are asserted only by the seller of these assets).
Management believes that the Corporation and uts officers
and directors have meritorious defenses 1o these actions.

As discussed in note 19 10 the financial statements, the
Corporation is a party 1o other lawsuits. Management
believes these marters will ultimately be resolved with no
material adverse financial effect.

In December 1990, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 106, “Employers’
Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than
Pensions.” The new Statement must be adopted generally
for fiscal years beginning afier December 15, 1992. See
note 2 1o the financial statlements.

In June 1991, the FASB issued an exposure draft iitled
“Accounting for Income Taxes™ which is intended 10
replace SFAS No. 96. A final statement is expected 10 be
issued in the first quarter of 1992. See note 3 1o the finan-
cial statements.




Report of Management

The Corporation has prepared the consolidated financial
statements and related financial informanor included in
this Annual Report. Management has the pnmary responsi-
bulity for the financial statements and other financial infor-
mation and for ascertaining that the data fairly reflect the
finan:ial position, results of operauons and cash flows of
the Corporation. The financial statements were prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
appropniaie in the circumstances, and necessaril* include
amourts that are bdsed on best estimates and judgments
With appropriaie consideration given to matenality
Financial information included elsew here in this Annual
Report 1s presented on a basis consistent with the financial
statements o

The Corporation maintains a system of nternal account
ing controls, supported by adequate documentation. to pro-
vide reasonable assurance that assets are saleguarded and
that tle books and records reflect the authorized transac
tons of the Corporation. Limitations exist in any system of
inicmal accounting controls based upon the rec ogmtion that
the cost of the system should not exceed the benefits
denived. Westinghouse believes its system of uternal
accounung controls, augmented by its corporate auditing
function, appropriately balances the cost/benefit
relationship

T ' independent accountants provide an objective
assessment of the degree 1o which management meets its
responsibility for fair financial reporting. They regularly
evaiuate the systemn of intermnal accounting controls and per
form such tests and procedures they deem necessary to
€xpress an opunion on the faimess of the financial
statement,

The Board of Directors pursues its responsibility for the
Corporation s financial statements through its Audit
Review Committee composed of directors who are not off;
cers or employees of the Corporation. The Audit Review
Committee meets reguiarly with che independent accoun
lants. management, and the corporate auditors The inde
pendent accountants and the corporate auditors have direct
access 1o the Audit Review Committee, with and without
the presence of management representatives, 1o discuss the
scope and results of
the adequacy of internal accounting controis and the quality
of financial reporting

We believe that the Corporation’s policies and proce-
dures, ing luding 1ts system of mnternal ac countung controis,
provide reasonable assurance that the financ 1al statements
are prepared in accordance with the apphcable securities
laws and with a corresponding standard of business
conduct.

thewr audit work and theur comments on

B ]

Report of Independent Accountants

To The Board of Directors
and Shareholders of
Westinghouse Eiectric Corporstion

In our opinion, the accompanying consohidated financial
Statements appearing on pages 24 through 44 of this
Annual Report present fairly, in all material respects. the
inancial position of Westinghouse Electric € orporation
and its subsidianes at December 31, 1991 and 1990 and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended De ember 31, 1991,
in conformity with generally accepied accounting princi
pies. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Corporation’s management. our responsibility is to express
an opiion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in
accordance with generally acrepted auditing standards
which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial state
ments are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
€xaminung, on a iest basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, and evaluating the overall financial state
ment presentation. We believe that our audits provide a rea-

sonable basis for the opinion expressed above

D /

600 Grani Street
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15219-9954

January 28, 1992
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Consolidated Statement of Income

n MUILIGRS eXCepl per share amounts

Weiz Ended Detember 2 2T TET s

S apc e Nyt .o

duct sales $ 8351

Service sales 3121

Poe

WFSI revenue x..‘:.;
nal sales and operating revenues 12,794

f products sold (6,408)
of services sold (2,154)
f WESI revenue, including interest (2.646)

ost of sales and revenues (11,208)

Markeurg. admirustration and general expenses (2,075)

Depreciation and amortization (378)
sains from major business divestit

Provisions forgestructuring (note 21

Other income and expenses, net

Inerest expense

income (10ss) before income taxes and

mnonty mierest 1

income Of consohidaled subsidianes

Income taxes

Minonty interest Of consohdated subsidianes

Net income (loss

NCOMeE (1088 ) per common share {note

Jividends per common share (note
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

fin mullions)

Operations excluding WFSL
Cash inote 4) $ 358 $ 286
Marketable securities (note 5) P 79%
Customer receivables (note 6) 1,609 1,847
Invenitones (note 7) 1,343 1,249
Uncompieted contracts costs over related billings (note 7) kL 473
Prepaid and other current assets (note 8) 313 417
Total current assets 4221 5.062
-
Plant and equipment (note 9) 2526 2.506
Intangible and oher noncurrent assets (note 10) 3.054 2974
Total assets excluding WFS] 9,801 10,542
WFSI: &
Cash and cash equivalents (note 4) 685 206
Marketable securities (note 5) 452 241
Recewvables held for investment, net (note 11) 5312 7.490
Assets heid for sale or restructuring, net (note 11) 1248 2,356
Orher assets (note 10) 1,661 1,198
Total assets — WFS] 10,358 11.49]
Total assets $20,159 $22.033
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Operations excluding WFS]
Short-ierm debt (note 12) $ 25T $ 1983
Accounts payable 838 LU
Uncompleted contracts billings over related costs (note 7) 580 703
Other current liabilities (note 13) 1515 1.625
Total current Liabilities 5510 5116
Long-term debt {note 14) 1.264 931
Other noncurrent Liabilities (note 15) 938 1587
. _Toul liabilities excluding WFSI] 7,712 7.634
WFSL
Short-term debt (note 12 3299 4,155
Long-term debt (note 14) 4016 5,160
Thrift deposits (note 16) 672 689
Orher Labilities (note 15) 541 27
Total liabilities — WFS] 8528 10,331
Total habilines 16,240 17.965
Conungent Liabilities and commitments (note 19)
Minority interest in equity of consolidated subsidiaries 173 171
Shareholders’ equity (note 17):
Preferred stock, $1 .00 par value (no shares issued) — —
Common stock, $1.00 par vaive (393 million and
370 million shares issued) 393 370
Capital in excess of par value 1.03% 659
Common stock held in treasury (1,264) (1.887)
Other 4) (346)
Retamed earmings 3582 5,101
Total sharcholders’ equity 1,746 3897
Total habilives and shareholders’ equity $20,159 $22.033

mdwmoumpapuudwmxh“unweydmndﬁeuﬁmrdm.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ,;
(in muilions)
Jear Ended December 1 e T menr
Operations Excluding WFSI:
Cash Flows from Operating Acuvities
Net income (loss) $ 5y $ ™M $ 770
Adjustments 1o reconcile net income (Joss) 1o net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization ) 360 345 354
Deferred income taxes 478 188 (106
Gaun from major business divestitures —— — (399) .
Change in assets and liabilities, net of effects
of acquisitions: p-
(Increase) decrease in customer receivables 235 230 (32) ;
Increase in inventoned costs, net of 1
related billings (149) (447) (176)
(Increase) decrease in deferred taxes, net 5 9) 15
(Increase) decrease in other current assets 2 176 (66) 2
Incréase in other assets (230) (157) (650)
Increase (decrease ) in income taxes currently payable (104) 2 87 :
Increase (decrease) in hiability for restructuring §
programs (42) (196) 137 \ i
Increase (decrease) in other current Liabilities 10 (263) 366 .
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities %2) (46) 474 ;
Net cash flow provided by operating activities 420 595 780
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Proceeds from major business divestitures — 166 1,015
Net investment in major business acquisitions —_ -_ (503)
Decrease in marketable securities 106 15 165
Capital expenditures (363) (401) (420)
Advances 1o affiliates (299) (147) —
Repayment of advance from affiliate - - (73)
Capital contributed to WFSI under parent
support agreement (1,405) (70) -
Other, net ) 9 an
Net cash flow provided by (used in) investing activities (1,968 ) (427) 167
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net increase (decrease) in short-term debt 594 107 (99)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 406 279 —_
Repayment of long-term debt (72) (182) {154)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 1) —_ -
Common stock purchased for treasury (1%5) (261) (166)
Common stock issued 10 employees 87 96 58
Dividends paid (433) (392) (334)
Other, net 19 53 2
Net cash flow provided by (used in) financing activites 1,137 (300) (663)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents from
operations excluding WFSI




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows — (..o

.

(in muillions) %
-Year Ended Dece M b icabvivt o O AL, |

WFSI: 3
Cash Flows from Operating Activities -
Net mcome (loss) $(1,033) $ (504, $ is2 §
Ad;usunenmomikmnm(hn)wmcuh i
provided by operating activities: .
Depreciation and amortization i8 18 13 y
Deferred income taxes (514) (262) PP |
Provision for losses, including valuation provisions 1814 1,139 119 ;
Change in assets and liabilities, net of effects !
of acguisitions: s :
(Increase) decrease in interest receivable 23 (1) Q2n 4
Increase (decrease) in other liabiliues (13} &, B {
Other, net (12) (6) (32) X

Net cash flow provided by operating activitier 253 3k8 273

Cash Flkws from Investing Activities

Cash acquired in thrift acquisitions — 78 —

Investments in marketable securities ) 372) (268) (559)

Proceeds from maturities and sales of marketable securities 163 351 338

Investments in receivabies held for investment (3817) (6,285) 6.527)

Coliections on and sales of receivables held for investment 3,463 4,485 4,777

investments in parnershups and other entities (112) (223) {144)

Investments in land heid for development and sale (138) (121) (89)

Collection of advance 1c parent company -— — 73

Investments in operating leases — (45) 72)

Proceedsfromﬂlesohulcswepmpemesowned — 9 72

Investments in assets held for sale or restructuring (84K - —

Coliections on and proceeds from sales of assets heid for %

sale or restructuring 2,163 — —
Other, net (11 2) (36) 4
Net cash flow provided by (used in} INVesiing activities 49 2.021) (2.167) ° 3
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net increase (decrease) in short-term dety (2,158) 299 1.023
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 1,313 1,951 1.446 i
Repayment of long-term deb (1,154) (975) (564) s
Proceeds from issuance of WOC preferred stock - - 152 :
Capnal received under parent support agreement 1.40% 70 — .
Advances and capital received from parent company 299 147 - ‘
Government assistance for thrift acquisition —_ 55 -
Net cash flow provided by (used in) financing activities (29%5) 1,547 2,057 '
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents from WFS] 479 (86) 163 ‘
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents [ (218) 447
Cash and cash equivaients at beginning ) 3

of period (note 4) L17%6 1,394 947
Clshlndcuhequivdenuuendofpenad(nole‘) $ 1,244 $1.176 $1.3%4
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Interest paid excluding WFSI § M7 $ 22 $ 233
Interes! paid — WFS] - 759 ™ 674
Income taxes paid i 191 308
For a description of noncash investing and financing transactions. see notes 2. 17, and 21 t
The informarion on pages 23 through 44 is an integral part of these financial siatements .
@) Ceriain amounts have been reclassified for comparative purposes. See nove |

27 ;




Notes To The Financial Statements

Mot 1: Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies

{ onsotidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of Westinghouse Electric Corporation and its subsidiary
companies after elimination of intercompany accounts and
transactions. Investments in joint ventures and other com-
panies in which the Corporation does not have control, gen-
erally less than 50% owned., but has the ability 10 exercise
significant management jnfluence over operaung and finan-
cial policies, are accounted for by the equity method.

The consolidated financial statements and notes are pre-
sented in a format that groups data in two categones:
(1) operatons excluding Westinghouse Financial Services,
Inc. and its subsidiaries (WFSI) and (2) WFSL. The
largest WFSI subsidianies are Westinghouse Credit
Corporation (WCC), Westinghouse Savings Corporation
(WSAV), and Westunghouse Communities, Inc. (WCI). For
segment reporting (note 22), WCl is included in the
Industries segment, WCTI's reporting segment for manage-
ment purposes.

Certain previously reported amounts have been reclassi-
fied to conform to the 1991 presentation.

Revenue Recognition

Sales are recorded primanly as products are shipped and
services are rendered. The percentage-of-completion
method of accounting s used for nuclear steam supply sys-
tem orders with delivery schedules generally in excess of
five years, major power generation systems with & cycle
ume in excess of one year, and certain construction projects
where this method of accounting is consistent with industry
practice. For certain long-term contracts in which develop-
ment and production are combined. revenue is recognized
as development mulestones are completed or units are
delivered.

WFSI revenues are recognized generally on the accrual
method. When accounts become delinquent for more than
two payment periods, usually 60 days, income is recog-
nized only as payments are received. Such delinguent
accounts for which no payments are received in the current
morith, and other accounts on which income is not being
recognized because the receipt of either principal or interest
1s questionable, are classified as noneaming receivables.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other acquired intangible assets are amor-
tized on the straight-line method over their estimated lives,
but not in excess of 40 years.

fnvestment Tax Credit — WFSI

The investment tax credit earned prior to its repeal on prop-
erty leased to others has been deferred and 1s recognized as
income over the contractual terms of the respective leases.

Inventories

A portion of the value of domestic inventones is deter-
mined on the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method of inventory
valuation. Inventories not on LIFO are valued at current
standard cost which approximates actual or average cost.
The elements of cost included in inventones are direct
labor, direct material and certain overheads. Long-term
contracts in process include costs incurred plus estimated
profits on contracts accounted for according 1o the
percentage-of-completion method.

Plant and Equipment

Plant and equipment assets are recorded at cost and depre-
ciated generally under the straight-line method based on
recognized useful lives. Expenditures for additions and
improvements are capitalized, and costs for repairs and
maintenance are charged 1o operations as incurred.

Allowance for Credit Losses and Other Valuation
Allowances — WFSI

An allowance for credit losses is maintained at a level
which provides for losses inherent in the present portfolio
of receivables. To determine the adequacy of the allowance,
management examines current delinguencies, the character-
istics of the accounts, the value of the underlying collateral,
and past chargeoff expenence. Management also assesses
general economic conditions and trends, and its stralegy
with respect to underperforming assets.

Valuation allowances are also maintained for assets held
for sale or restructuring at leveis that are intended to reduce
the carrying value of such assets to net rezlizable value. |

The provision for losses includes charges 1o income nec-
essary to increase the allowance for credit losses and other
valuation allowances 10 adeguate levels based on manage-
ment's evaluation. Amounts are writien off against the
allowances when management’s review indicates that the
receivables are not collectible, securities” values are
impaired, or property values are not recoverable.

Assets Held for Sale or Restructuring — WFSI

In February 1991, the Board of Directors adopted a new
strategy which entails the downsizing of WFSI's business
and a reduction of its exposure to underperforming and
higher risk assets. That decision was based on continuing
deterioration m the U.S. economy, and weakness in several
of the markets served by WFS] and WCC, notably real
estate, highly leveraged corporate transactions, and high
yield securities. The changing and uncertain business con-
ditions in those markets made it prudent, in management’s
view, 1o alter WFSI's strategy of holding underperforming
assets for long-term resolution 1o a strategy that entails the
near-term hiquidation of certain of those assets. As a result,
assets held for sale or restructuring, which primarily
include receivables, real estate properties owned, invest-
ments in partnerships, and marketable secunities, have been




sdentified and are classified on the balance sheet as such.
Pretax valuation provisions of $1.680 milhon and $975
million were recognized in the third quanter of 1991 and
fourth quarter of 1990 10 cover estimated losses to be real-
1zed on the disposition or restructuring of those assets
(note 11).

Financial Instruments

In 1990, the Corporation adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 105, “Disclosure of
Information about Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-
Sheet Risk and Financial Instruments with Concentrations
of Credit Risk.™ The disclosure requirements of this
Statement have been applied in vanous notes 1o the finan-
cial statements.

In December 1991, SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about
Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” was issued and will
be adopted by the Corperation for the year ended
December 31, 1992, as required. This Statement 1s an
extension of SFAS No. 105 and requires the disclosure of
the fair value of centain financial instruments. The impact
of adopting thus Statement on the Corporation is currently
being evaluated: however at this ime, it 1s anticipated that
WFSI disclosures will be primarily affected.

Note 2: Pensions and Other
Postretirement Benefits

The Corporation has vanous pension arrangements cover-
ing substantially all employees. Most plan benefits are
based on esther years of service and compensation levels at
the ume of returement or a formula based on career eam-
ings. Pension benefits are paid from trusts funded by contri-
butions from employees and the Corporation. The pension
funding policy is consistent with the funding requirements
of US. federal and other government laws and regulations.

For the principal plans, a 9% discount rate and a 6% rate
of increase in future compensation levels was used in deter-
mining the actuarial present value of the projected benefit
obligation. The expected long-term rate of return on plan
assets was | 1%.

For financial reporting purposes, a pension plan is con-
sidered underfunded when the fair value of plan assets is
less than the accumulated benefit obligation. When that is
the case, a liability must be recognized for the sum of the
underfunded amount pius the amount of any prepaid pen-
sion contributions. In recognizing such a Liability, an intan-
gible asset is usually recorded. However, the amount of the
intangible asset may not be greater than the sum of the
prior service costs not yet recognized and the unrecognized
transition obligation as shown in the Funding Status table.
When the liability to be recognized is greater than the
intangible asset limit, a charge must be made to sharehold-
ers’ equity for the difference, net of any tax effects which
could be recognized in the future.

At December 31, 1991, no pension hability was provided
since the fair value of plan assets was in excess of the accu-
mulated benefit obligation due to the improved investment
performance of plan assets plus the October 1991 contribu-
tion of the Corporation’s common stock (note 17).

At December 31, 1990, a hability of $1,018 million was
recognized for the sum of the underfunded amount of §572
milbon plus the prepaid pension contribution of $446 mil-
hion. Offsetting the hability was an intangibie asset for the
maximum allowed amount of $592 muilion and a charge to
shareholders” equity of $426 million which was reduced to
$352 million due to tax deferrals of $74 mullion (notes 10,
15, and 17).

The prior service cost not yet recognized for 199]
reflects a decrease from the prior year due 1o plan amend-
ments for the Older Workers Benefit Protection Act and
plan design. ’

Plan assets consist primanly of listed stocks, fixed income F unding Status
securities, and real estate investments. (in mullions)
The projected pemﬁl obligation is the u:manﬂ present 5,5;,;,! : o v W, "“"!"“E
value of that portion of the projected bepeﬁts atmbuublc 10 ” l value of benefis obligaton:
employee service rendered to date. Service cost is the actu- Vesed : SA6E) 4327
arial present value of that portion of the projected benefits Nonvested a9 (347)
attributable 10 employee service rendered during the year. Accumulated benefit obligation wne e
Effect of projecied future
Net Periodic Pension Costs compensation jevels i (324} (436)
(en mullions) Projected benefit obliganoen for .
’ ' be service rendered 1o date (5.098)  (5,106)
Service cost $ 65 $ 65 $ &9 Plan assets at far value 4556 4 (9%
Interest cost on projecied henefit obliganon LE. ) 438 432 Projecied benefit obligation i
Amoruzation of unrecognized net obligation 4 s 3 excess of plan assets (242) (1008
Amoruzaton of unrecognized prior Unrecognized net loss () 862
service cost 8 1 12 Prior service cost not yet recognized wn net
S0 SSB 559 periodic pension cost 13 9
Retum on plan assets. Unrecognized transition obligation at
Actual retum on plan assets %) 53 (662) January 1. net of amoruzation i o4
Unrecogruzed retum on plan assets 216 (525) 212 Prepaud pension contribution $ 84 3 a4
Recognized retum on plan assets (483) 472) (a5
Net penodic pension cost $77 S8 19

i A S i~ RSt B N A,

s T

AR iy .

. .

[ )

e

R s

R T



In addition to pension benefits, certain health care and
life insurance benefits are provided to employees who
minfmmthepmmcompanyandcenunohtssui
sidianes. Health care and similar benefits for reured and
active employees are provided through insurance compa-
nies whose premiums are based on the benefits paid dunng
the vear. The related cost is recognized as expense as pre-
miums and claims are paid. The cost of retiree health care
was approximately $70 mallion in 1991, $62 million in
1990, and $51 mullion in 1989.

In December 1990, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 106, “Employers’
Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than
Pensions.” This Statement is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 1992, except for pians out-
side the U.S., for which adoption is required for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 1994, The most significant
change required by the, Stalement is recognition of post-
retirement benefits other than pensions on an accrual basis
of accounting as opposed to the cash basis that is currently
used for these benefits. Rules included in the Statement
permit either immediate recognition of the transition obli-
gation or amortization over a 20-year period. The impact
on the Corporation of adopting this Statement is expecied
1o be in the range of $1.100 million to $1.200 million. The
after-tax impact of adoption of SFAS No. 106 1s expected
to be 1n the range of $700 million to $750 million assuming
that the Corporation adopts SFAS No. 106 concurrent with
or after the adoption of a soon to be 1ssued replacement for
SFAS No. 96, “Accounting for Income Taxes.”

Note 3: Income Taxes
Income Taxes
(in mullions)
& VT N "M..-—-” s - —
B L A IR i v . 1908
Current:
Federal 30 $135  $241
State 2 9 52
Forewgn 43 e 103
Total income tases current 1 § ] 218 396
Deferred.
Federal ™ 69) (a1)
State 47 (3 -
Foreign 6) 2) (15)
Total income taxes deferred 3 (74) (56)
Income taxes $25) $Slas 30

The foreign portion of income before income taxes and
munority interest in income of consolidated subsidianies in
the consolidated statement of income was $32 million in
1991, $120 million in 1990, and $156 million in 1989.
Such income consists of profits and losses generated from
foreign operanions and can be subject to both U.S. and for-
€IgN INCome Laxes.

Deferred federal income taxes have not been provided
on cumulative undistributed eamnings from foreign sub-
sidianies, totalling $493 mullion at December 31, 1991, in

which the eamings have been reinvested for an indefinite
time. It 1s not practicable to determine the income tax lia-
bility that would result had such camings been repatnated.
The amount of withholding taxes that would be payable
upon such repatriation is estimated to be $30 million.

Net income includes income of certain manufacturing
operations in Puerto Rico which are exempt from U.S. fed-
eral income tax and partially exempt from Puento Rican
income tax under grants of industrial tax exemptions.
These exemptions will expire at vanous dates from 1996
through 2008.

Deferred income taxes result from temporary differences
in the financial bases and tax bases of assets and liabilities.
The fype of differences that give rise to significant portions
of deferred income tax Labiliues or assets are shown in the

accompanying labie.

Deferred Income Tax Sources
(in millions)
[t December 31 Al L TR |
Provisions for expenses and losses $1.288 § B4l
Long-term contracts in process i 7%
Financial basis operating losses

and credit carryforwards (184 130y
Accumulated depreciation (24%) (252)
Pensions (287 (33
Leasing acuvities ®874) 631)
Other 1y (12)
Net deferred income tax habihiry $ 47 30134

At December 31, 1991, operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards for financial reporting purposes totalled
$1.329 million in the aggregate. Of that amount, $34 mul-
tion, all investment tax credits, will expire between 2003
and 2007. The remainder of the $1.329 million will expire
after 2007. Aliernative munimum tax credit carryforwards
for tax purposes, which do not expire, totalied $302 million
at December 31, 1991.
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Consolidated Effective Tax Rate
3 s -~ .:_' + ‘.‘. n??'i'.!""““"' R 5.
.‘iu..[, i it o '

T T - |

M0O% 8%

Federal siatutory income tax rate 3404
Increase (reduction) in the tax rare

resulting from
Change relased 10 application of

financial basis net operating losses and

credn carryforw ards 351 144 45
State income tax. net of federal effect 7 24 29
Goodwill amortizaton 0% 1.7 02
Federal income tax on dividends from

foreign subsidianes 0s 15 1.7
Drvidend received deduction 0.4 2n on
lnwevmnwmmcomoﬂm:nwa

corporanons a3l a3 wn
Lower wx rate on net income of

Puerto Rican operations 50 %0 9
Other 0.7) o0 0.3)
Consolidated effecti«~ tax rate 2% 3136% 267%

The federal inconte tax retumns of the Corporation and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries are senled through the year
ended December 31, 1986 Management believes that ade-
quate provisions for taxes have been made through
December 31, 1991,

In June 1991, the FASB issued for comment an exposure
draft utled “Accounting for Income Tuxes” which 1s
intended to replace SFAS No. 96 Among other things, the
new Statement, as currently proposed. would permit recog-
mition of deferred tax benefits on temporary differences in
Situations not permitted under the current Statement. If the
final version, expected 1o be issued in the first quarter of
1992 contains provisions similar to those included in the
exposure draft, the impact on the Corporation is expected to
be favorable in the $400 million to $450 million range.

u-ecmmcuutumm

Cash and Cash Equivalents
(am muilions)

= TR ey

i December 31 ., (. . o

Operations excluding WFSI:
Cash s
Marketabie secunties (note )

Total cash and cash equivalents excluding WFS§

Cash and cash equivaients — WFS]

Cash and cash equivalents

The Corporation considers all securities with a maturity
of three months or less when acquired to be cash equiva-
lents. All cash and lemporary investments are placed with
hugh credit-quality financial institutions and the amount of
credit exposure 1o any one financial institution is limited.

»

Note 5: Marketable Securities

Marketabie securities excluding WFSI are carmied at cost
which approximates market value. At December 31, 1991
and 1990, marketable securities included cash equivalents
#f $204 million and $684 million.

WFSI marketable securities, all assets of WSAV, con-
sisted of U.S. and other government obligations and
morngage-backed secunities. A portion of these assets,
which are cammied at amortized cost. secured certain short-

8
4

»

term debt obligations of WSAV. At December 31,1991, the

market vaiue of these securities exceeded their carrying
value by $20 million. At December 31, 1990, the carrying
value of WFSI's marketable securities approximated mar-
ket value.

Additional marketable securities held at December 31,
1991 and 1990 are classified as assets held for sale or
restructunng (note 11).

During 1991 and 1990, $72 million and $11 milhion of
marketable secunities matured. During 1991, sales of mar-
ketable secunities totalled $91 million. Gross realized gains
and gross realized losses on these sales were not material.

At December 31, 1991, the carrying value of marketable
securities maturing in each of the follow Ing years is: 1992 -
$3 million; 1993 through 1996 - $9 million: 1997 through
2001 - $6 million; after 2001 - $434 million.

Kote §: Customer Receivables
Exciuding WFSI

Customer receivables at December 31. 199} included
$187 million which represented the sales value of matenal
shipped under long-term contracts but not billed to the cus-
tomer. Collection of these receivables, which will be billed
upon shipment of major components of the contract, is
expected to be substantially completed within one vear.

Allowance for doubtful accounts of $71 million and
$48 muilion at December 31, 1991 and 1990 were deducted
from customer receivables.

As of December 31, 1991, the Corporation had no signif-
icant concentrations of credit risk due to the large number
of customers comprising the Corporation’s customer base
and their dispersion across many different industries and
geographic areas. The Corporation performs on-going
credit evaluations of its customers and generally does not
require collateral.

M?:W“M“l&'
on Uncompleted Contracts

Thcpatimoftheyen-endpossinvemoryvalueofnw
matenals, work i process, and finished goods determined
using the LIFO method was 24% for 1991 and 1990,
Thccxcessofpmducﬁoncostovuﬂxcostoﬁmemo-
nies valued on the LIFO basis was approximately $130 mil-
lion and $153 million at December 31, 1991 and 1990,
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Inventories

fam mullsoms )

oM e omber SRl TR
Raw matenals $ 159 $ 1713
Work in process 952 wak
Fimshed goods 33‘7_»— s
1448 1478
Long-1eTn CONMracts in process 923 8SS
Progress payments 1o subcontractors 203 21
Recoverabie engineening and
development costs St 695
3078 3249
Less inventoned costs related to contracts
with progress billing erms 1,738 2000
Inventones $1.343 $1.249

Costs and Billings on Uncompileted Contracts

(tm mullioms) ;

'At Dec ! i P 51 o Pl Y R

Costs included m mventones $1.264 $1.272

Progress billings on contracts 87 (799)
Uncompleted contracts costs over

related tilings s W $ 473
Progress billings on contracts $1,051 $1.47)
Costs included i mnventones 471 (728)
Uncompleted contracts billings over

related costs $ S8o $ 703

Raw matenals, work in process, and finished goods
included costs related to shon- and long-term contracts of
approximately $1.008 million at December 31, 1991 and
$1,046 mallion at December 31, 1990. All costs in long-
(€7 CONLracts in Process, progress payments to subcontrac-
tors, and recoverable engineering and development costs
were contraci-related.

inventories other than those related to long-term con-
tracts are generally realized within one year. Inventoried
costs do not exceed realizable values.

Note 8: Prepaid and Other Current Assets

Prepaid and Other Current Assets

{in millions )

mm Thee o anf e odil - i T, - %
Deferred income tases s $i82
Other 223 235
Prepaid and other current assets $313 $417

Nots ©: Plant and Equipment

Plant ané Equipment

(an mullrons)

Land and buildings $1.002

$ 989
Machinery and eguipment 372 3544
Construction in progress Mo 3y
Plant and equipment. at cost 5670 4550
Accumulaled depreciation (2544 (2344
Plam and eguipment $2.526 $2.506

Intangible and Other Noncurrent Assets
(in mulhons)

Goadwil! and other acquired intangibie

assels $1.26% $1,188
Prepaid pension contribution (note 2) Kivd a4
Unrecognized pension costs (note 2) — 592
Joint ventures and other &ffiliates 201 163
Uramum settiement assels 54 S8
Other b 530

Intangible and other noncurrent assets $3.0654 $2.974

Uranium settiement assets relate to uranium inventory
awaiting delivery and settlement items being produced
uader uranium supply contract settiement agreements
(note 19). Inventory and other settiement iterns expected
to be delivered within one year are included in other current
assets.

Other Assets — WFSI

fin millions)

Parmerships and other entities $ 52 § 43R
Deferred income taxes e -
Land heid for development and sale 403 361
Real esiate properuies owned. net — 85
Onher 292 34
(nher assets — WFS] $1.661 $1.19%

At December 31, 1991 and 1990, real estate properties
owned totalling $730 million and $285 million, and part-
nerships and other entities totalling $155 million and $24
million were classified as assets held for sale or restructur-
ing (note 11).




MNote 11: Receivables Held for Investment and Assets Held
for Seie or Restructuring — WFSI

At December 31, 1991, WFSI receivables held for invest-
ment totalled $5.312 million. net of an allowance for credit
losses of $374 million. Assets held for sale or restructunng
rotalled $2.248 million, net of a valuation allowance of
$1.667 million. The receivables component of assets held
for sale or restructuring totalled $2.910 million, pnor 10 the
valuation allowance. See the Assets Held for Sale or
Restructuring table on page 35. -

At December 31, 1990, WFSI receivables held for
investment totalied $7.490 million, net of an allowance for
credit losses of $298 million. At the same date, assets held
for sale or restructuring totalled $2,356 million, net of a
valuation allowance of $1.025 million. Receivabies heild for
sale or restructuring, prior to the valuation allowance,
totalled $2.412 million at December 31, 1990.

Receivables held for investment and held for sale or
restructuring are summarized in the table below to facilitate
the following discussion.

Tota! Receivables
(im mullions )

o T = -——-v-—-w—r' .
Financing .. .. B  Coporme Ilewsing Towl
At December 31, 1991
Held tor investment $1.99%  S1527 $1,163 $ 568
Held for Sale or
e Rmmng 1.953 9313 24 910
Receivables 1849 S3400 $1.187 $ 5,59
At December 31 1
Heid for Investment $3.174 $32%7 $1.37M $ 7.788
Heid for Sale or

Restructuning 1.297 1 086 29 2412
Receivabies $4.471 $4.323 $1.406 $10.200

Real estate receivables consist of loans for commercial
and residential real estate properties. At December 31, 1991
first mongages on income-producing properties comprised
87% of 1otal real estate receivabies. Hotels and motels
secured 27% of the receivables at December 31, 1991,
apartments secured 15%, office buildings secured 11%, and
shopping centers secured 10%. Of these properties, 15%
were jocated in California, 12% in Flonda, and 12% in
[ilinois. No other significant geographic concentrations
exist. Excluding the receivables of WCI and WSAY, the
largest single borrower exposure in the real estate portfolio
totalled $296 milion at December 31, 1991; average expo-
sure 1o all borrowers was $12 million.

At December 31, 1990, first mongages on income-pro-
ducing properties comprised 9% of real estate receivables.
Also at December 31, 1990, hotels and motels secured 22%
of the receivables and apartments secured 14%. The
remaining properties included shopping centers and office
buildings. Of these properties, 18% were located in
California, 16% in lllinois, and 13% in Flonida. There were
no other significant geographic concentrations. The largest

single borrower exposure in the real estate portfolio totalied
$302 million at December 31, 1990; average borrower
exposure, excluding WCI and WSAV, was $16 million.

WFSI has entered into participation agreements with
lending institutions which provide for the recourse sale of a
semior interest in certain real estate loans. No loans were
sold in 1991; however in 1990, proceeds from the sale of
such loans were $47 million. The receivables sold under
participation agreements had remaining outstanding bal-
ances of $142 million and $270 mi'lion at December 31,
1991 and 1990. During 1991, WFSI repurchased $92 mil-
lion of receivables previously sold under these agreements.

Corporate financing receivables are generally considered
highly leveraged financing transactions. A transaction 1s
highl leveraged if the related financing involves a buyout,
acquisition, or recapitalization of an existing business, and
involves a hugh debi-to-equity ratic.

At December 31, 1991, 53% of corporate financing
receivables were senior obligations of the borrowers, and
47% were subordinated. Vanable-amount commercial line-
of-credit loans secured by borrowers’ inventory or recerv-
ables represented 20% of the corporate receivables. An
additional 33% of corporate receivabies represented fixed-
amount loans secured by specified assets, general assets,
stock, or other tangible assets of the borrower. The remain-
ing corporate receivables were unsecured.

Borrowers in the corporate portfolio, generally muddle-
market compames, are located primanly throughout
the U.S. Manufacturing, retail trade, finaacial services, and
media represent the significant industry concentrations in
this portfolio. Exposure 10 the largest single borrower
totalled $182 million at December 31, 1991; average bor-
rower exposure was $19 milhon.

At December 31, 1990, 49% of corporate financing
receivables were senior obligations of the borrowers, and
51% were subordinated. Approximately 13% of corporate
receivables at December 31, 1990 represented vanable-
amount commercial line-of-credit loans. Fixed-amount
loans comprised 36% of corporate receivables. Exposure 10
the largest single borrower totalled $163 miilion: average
borrower exposure was $15 mullion.

The leasing portfolio consists of direct financing and
leveraged leases. At December 31, 1991, nearly 64% of
these leases relate 1o aircraft. The portfolio also includes
leases for cogeneration facilities, railcars, marine vessels,
and trucking equipment.

Net Investment in Leases
(in millions )

YAl December T e oy
Rentals receivable (net of pnncipal and

mterest on nonrecourse loans) $1.303  §1568
Esumated residual valoe of leased assets Sa3 560
Uneamed and deferred income 614) (733)
investment 1n ieases 1192 1392
Deferred wxes and deferred ITC

ansmg from icases - w20 (60T
Net investment in leases $ 572 § S
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Matunnes for receivables held for investment and held
for sale or restructuning are presented in the tavles below.

Receivabies Held for Investment and Related Contractusl Meturities
(im wulliony)

..w'w' % St
RTINS e

< o dlas -J‘; - - <=
i s ol oo oTlgh o LG -
B i i Y| i i s T qumx e

“Cmepory of Fumncg Lo Toull L 1998 T 1993 Ll 199 Ll 998 1996 [, 1997 nd Ay o Sl Toneh TS

R

Real estate $1.9% $1.05% $1e9 $287 $138 §i48 $ 2 $3.174
Corporaie 257 128 2 92 m 231 L1y 3237
Leasing 1,163 13 2 % 32 43 1027 1377
Receivables £.686 $1.9% 402 $578 $504 S $2388 7,788
Allowance for credit losses (374) (29%)
Receivabies. net 5312 - $7.490

Receivables Held for Sele or Restructuring and Retated Contractus! Maturities

(m mulizoms ) .

T N o e WOy gy

L e S --._m‘ :. Y-‘ : .‘—.“.’f-—“.l— ' L
~Category of Financing, LT Toual” " 1997 .0 19937701998 o551998 1996 [ 1997 and Afuer LT Towiiol 0l
Real estate $1.953 $1,065 $118 $ied $218 $I78 siie $1.297
Corporaie 933 52 58 95 e 133 419 1.086
Leasing 24 i H 2 3 3 14 2%
Receivables $2.910 $L.118 5174 $261 $400 404 $543 $2412

Experience has shown that numerous accounts may be During 1991, receivables hiquidations totalled $4 K88
repaid or refinanced prior to contractual maturity. For real million. Of this amount, $801 million represented sales of
estate receivables at December 31, 1991, management receivables and the remainder were principally repayments
expects actual cash collections 1o be significantly less than under commercial line-of-credit loans. During 1990, receiv-
their scheduled contractual maturities during 1992. ables liquidations totalled $4.694 million, principally
Accordingly, the maturities shown in the tables above repayments under commercial line-of-credit loans.
should not be regarded as a forecast of future cash
coliections.
e
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Nonearning and Reduced Earning Receivabies
fin mullions )

T -

Dt Y R L il
- Cagory of Fiomncing ~ L8 T rv T 22

Nonearmung receivables:

Real eswie $ 9 $
Corporaie 562 243
Lmng 19 .
Nonearming receivabies $1.512 $ ss2
Reduced earning receivabies

Real estate $1.036 $1.293
Corporate 29 -
Reduced earning receivables §1.065 $1.293

In the preceding table, 80% of the NONEAMINg receiv-
ables and 65% of the reduced earning receivables relate 1o
assets held for sale or restructuring. The remaining non-
eaming and reduced eamning receivables pertain to receiv-
ables held for investment.

Under onginal contractual terms, the interest income that
would have been eamed on noneaming receivables totalled
$186 million and $67 million ar December 31, 1991 and
1990 Interest income actually earmed on noneaming
receivables totalled $56 million and $16 million for those
same years. WCC has 1ssued commitments to fund $328
milhon related to accounts included in the table above.
Included in noneaming receivables at December 31, 1991
were $106 million of receivables from borrowers who were
in bankruptcy at vear-end 1991

Reduced eaming receivables consist of accounts that,
due pnmarily to financial difficulties of the borrower, have
been modified and eam less than their onginal contractual
ratz. Repayment terms on restructured real estate receiv-
ables often provide for payments based on the performance
of the underlying property as well as a residual interest in
that property. Under original contractual terms, the interest
tncome that would have been earned on reduced eaming

receivables at December 31, 1991 and 1990 totalied
$101 million and $143 million. Actual interest income
eamed for those years totalled $62 million and $76 million.

In addition 1o receivables, assets held for sale or restruc-

tuning include real estate properties owned, partnerships
and other entities, and marketable securities.

Assets Heid for Sabe or Restructuring — WFSj

(in mullions)

Receivables $2910 $2412
Real estate properues owned ™ 288
Parmerships and other entites 155 24
Marketabie secunities + 654
Other 74 6
Valuation allowance (1,667 (1,025
Assets held for sale or restructunng — WFSj $2.248 $2.356

It is management’s intent 10 hquidate substantially all of
the assets held for sale or restructunng: however, a portion
may be restructured :~d, at such time, would be reclassified
1o receivables heid for investnient.

Real estate properties owned include properties acquired
through foreclosure proceedings or represent “in-substance™
foreclosures. Properties are carried at the lower of former
loan amount or estimated net realizable value. The proper-
ties are being operated by WFSI or contracted professional
management until their sale.

Marketable Securities Heid for Sale or Restructuring
(im millions)
" '-----vﬁ‘m -
{&W"‘Mm b el ey
Carrying  Unrealized Marker

Value Losses Value
1991
Corporaie dett securities § 4 $ 2 $ 18
1990
Corporate dety securines $504 $161 $343
Other detn secuninies 123 17 106
Orher equity securities 7 - 27
Marketable secunties $654 $17K 76

Corporate debt securities include high vield secu-
rities, primarily subordinated, that were tssued in highly
leveraged transactions. The largest exposure 10 a single
issuer was $15 million at December 31, 1991; the average
exposure 10 all issuers was $3 maillion.

During 1991, proceeds from sales of investments in debt
securiues totalled $535 million. Gross gains of $24 mullion
and gross losses of $103 million were realized on those
sales. Proceeds from sales of investments in debt securities
during 1990 totalled $340 million. Gross realized gains and
grossreahzedlouesonmosenleswmnmmncml,

P e

e

" e

-

o A
.

l -I . . ." B



Note 12: Short-Term Debt

Short-Term Debt Excluding WFSI
(in mulbsons )
B Drcerber i T Dy o ) e’ 0
Com- Wid
posie Max Out-  Avg Out- Avg
Balance Rate  stancding standing Rawe
1991
Commercial
paper $1LA42 59% 14 $1.897 3%
Revolving credit
facibity WS 5$7% 98s 2 64%
Short-werm foreign
bank loans 14 133% 200 121 133%
Orher a0
Short-term detxt & L.
1990
A
Commercial
paper $1.786 E0% $2014 §$1.480 2%
Short-term foreign
bank loans 106 143% 233 138 R4a%
Other 91
Short-ierm detet $1.953
1989
Commercial
paper $Lam B6% $1832 $1232 92%
Shon-term foreign
bank loans 4] 12.3% 141 79 140%
10.20% notes 100
10.45% notes 100
Other 114
Shortaerm debt $1.862

Average outstanding borrowings were determined based on
daily amounts outstanding for commerciai paper and the
revolving credit facility, and on monthly balances outstand-
ing for bank loans. The average rates for short-term foreign
bank loans compared 10 commercial paper reflect the
impact of higher interest costs on local currency borrow-
ings of subsidiaries.

In December 1991, the Corporation entered into a three-
year $6 billion revolving credit facility agreement with a
syndicate of 49 domestic and international banks. The
largest commitment from any one bank s less than 5% of
the total. The facility is available for usc: by the Corporation
and WCC subject 10 the maintenance of certain rauos and
compliance with other covenants. Among other things,
these covenants place restrictions on the incurrence of
liens, the amount of debt on a consolidated basis and at the
subsidiary level. and the amount of contingent habilities.
The covenants also require the maintenance of a leverage
ratio, a minimum coverage ratio, and minimum consoli-
dated net worth among other things.

The interest rate 1s determined at the time of each bor-
rowing under the facility and may be based on one of the
following rates: LIBOR, certificate of deposit, pnme, or
federal funds. The interest rate for the current borrowing is
5.7% and 1s based on LIBOR. At December 31, 1991, con-

solidated borrowings under the facility totalled $1.990 mil-
Lion, of which $985 million was borrowed by the
Corporation and $1,005 million was borrowed by WCC.
The Corporation and WCC guarantee the other's borrow-
ings under the facility.

There are no compensating balance requirements under
the facility. Ongination fees of $91 milhion will be amor-
tized over the remaining term of the facility. Commitment
fees range from 2% 10 .5% on the amount of the facility.

At December 31, 1991, the revolving credit facility had
sufficient capacity to replace all outstanding coramercial
paper net of cash and cash equivalents issued by both the
Corporation and WCC.

At December 31, 1990, confirmed bank lines of credit
under previous arrangements totalled $1,300 mullion. These
lines were placed with domestic banks and were unused
and supported commercial paper. Commitment fees and
compensating balance requirements under the credit
arrangements at December 31, 1990 were not matenial.

Other shon-term debt consisted primarily of the current
portion of long-term debt at December 31, 1991, 1990,
and 1989.

Short-Term Debt — WFSI

(in mullions )
PO o ——————— — - ———
i December 3B " During the Year 3
Com- Wid
posiie Max. Our- Avg Out-  Awvg
Balance Rate standing standing  Rate
1991
Commercial
paper $2.202 3% $4.384 $3.328 5%
Revolving creds
facility 1005 £7% 1005 28 4%
Other revolving
credit facilines — - 1470 2 5%
Sterling commercial
paper - — 0% M 129%
Varable-rate trust
MAsIeT ntes - - w7 » 3%
Other 92
Short-term detw $3.29%
1990
Commertial
paper $3,725 79% $6012 $5.648 £2%
Sterling commercial
paper 109 141% 139 72 145%
Vanable-raie trust
master noLs 164 2% 197 156 1%
Orher 157
Short-1erm detn $4.158
1989
Commercial
paper $4.029 E7% $434) $i817 92%
Vanabie rate trust
MASIET NOws 174 5 0% 70 210 90%
Bank loan - - 146 47 G6%
Onher 3
Shor-term detn 34206
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borrowings for WFS] were deier 1990 is based on the average of the L
unts oL ding . 1al and offered rate
The 8 .60% notes, the meaiur

notes. and the =
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Mote 13: Other Current Lisbilities Long-Term Debt — WFSI

nm

Other Current Liabilites

R -'j‘"cwv.v*- -ﬁw'-v'ﬂ
P EPR - i Shatis. 26
Medium-term notes

$ 268 3 4% 10 8 6% Federu

152
100
ot

Jue thro

e bank

rale senior notes du 200
w notes due 19 150

y notes due 1 60
Note 14: Long-Term Debt notes due 150

142

$4.016 $

Long-Term Debt Excluding WSl

nom ’

1 December 31

nleres

gates were

-
iﬂ?v{‘ he redeeme
mmercial

. in February 1992 Decen the effecuve
interest

interest rate on U« NOICE was ©

December 31, 1991, WFSI's long-term debt matunng
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efie ve interest rate

t December 31, 199 and




Kote 18: Other Noncurrent Liabiilties
Other Noncurrent Liabilities Excluding WFSI

fin millions)

Note 17: Shareholders’ Equity
Sharehoiders’ Equity
(in milhions)

Commaon Siock

Minimum pension habsdity (note 2) - 1.018 Balance al January | $ I § 18§ %3
Onher 313 387 Two-for-one stock spiut — 185 -
Other noncurrent Liabilines $938  §1.5%7 Shares issued B . '
Balance at December 3] 3 3720 154
Other Liabiliti WFSI Capial in Excess of Par Value
e Balance at January | &5 795 764
o o) P —— Two-for-one stock aplit - 8 .
~Ar December 310 T O e 199F "'!I Shares issued e 21 2%
Defenumvemmaedn $ S Shares issped under vanous
Deferred income wres — 7() compensation and benefit plans (169) 2) 4
Onher FT 193 Shares ssued for acquisitions — 25 -
Oxher i b 6
Orher Liabilines — WFSI $541 $327 o -
Balance at December 31 1.0 659 795
A Common Stock Held in Treasury
Note 16: Thrift Deposits — WFSI Balance at January | (1LB8T)  (1,798)  (1,780)
: ' Shares hased by the Corporation (15 (261) (166)
The thnft deposits dcmledvm the accompanying table are P ::; und:) salbous
liabiliues of WSAV, a subsidiary of WFSL compensanon and benefit plans [ %3] 9 SK
Shares issued for acquisitions — 76 9%
Thrift Deposits Orher 7 - -
(im mullions) Balance ai December 31 (1.264)  (1LBET)  (1.79%)
g AT e mm— * <vm -
A December 3§ T 1T DT 199l Other
Type of Avg Avg Balance at January | (344) (22) 9)
Account Balance  Rate Balance  Rate Foreign currency transiation adjustments (10) 24 (12)
ey e o= Unrealized gain (loss) on WFSI's
accou! ’ - 4 )
Due i 3 months $123  65%  $I5S 78% SRSPSERES Sy ey e
Pension Lisbility adjustment. .. of
Due in 3 10 6 months L 4% 108 79% defonnt nae 187 (382) o
Due i 6 10 12 months 115 6.6% 135 B 0% i -
Due in over 12 months 152 74% 122 £ 0% Balance ai December 31 s (346) Q2
Passhook accounts n 47% §2 2% Retained Earnings
Money market accounts » 43% 36 59% Balance at January | £i0 5228 4637
NOW accounts % 5% 34 5.1% Net income (loss) (1,086) 268 922
Olhet noninierest and escrow 28 47 Cash dividends 433) (392) (334,
Thnft deposit: %72 $689 Balance at December 31 ‘ 1582 5,101 5228
Shareholders’ equity $1746  $3E97  S43m4
During May 1991, the Corporation issued 21,500 000 shares
of its common stock in a public offering, the net proceeds
of which totalled $551 million. The proceeds of the offer-
ing were used to reduce the Corporation’s shori-term debt.
During the third quarter of 1991, the Corporation uffered
a Dividend Reinvestment and Common Stock Purchase
' Plan (Plan) whereby shareholders may elect 1o reinvest

cash dividends, and may optionally invest additional cash,
in shares of the Corporation's common stock without pay-
Ing commissions or service charges. Proceeds receiv~d
from Plan participants for shares which are newly-issued or
treasury shares will be used for general corporate purposes.




During October 1991, the Corporation contributed
22 645,000 shares of common siock held in treasury to the
Westinghouse pension plan. The contribution was valued at
$375 mullion by the pension plan trustee and is included as a
component of prepaid pension contribution (notes 2 and 10).

Common Shares
(en thousands |
Balance at January |, 1989 183,424 30458 143 966
Shares purchased for treasury —_ 2360 (2,360)
Shares ssued for employee plans - (137 137
Shares ssued for acquisinons - (1,162} 1,162
Shares 1ssued on conversionei 9%

convertibie debentures o7 - 987
Balance at December 31, 1989 184411 %279 145,132
Two-for-one stock split 184 B6S 39.080 145 818
Shares purchased for treasury —_ 7.743 (7,743)
Shares 1ssued for employee plans - (1.740) 2740
Shares wsued for acquisinons — (3,224) 3224
Shares issued on conversion of 9%

converubie debentures el — 940
Balance at December 31, 1990 370216 80,108 296,108
Public stock offering 21 500 — 21.500
Shares purchased for treasury — 542 542)
Shares ssued for dividend

reinvestment pian — (289) %9
Shares 1ssued for smpioyee plans - (26616) 26616
Shares wssued on conversion of 9%

converuble debentures 1,282 - 1,282
Onher —_— 17 a7
Balance at December 31, 199] 392,998 £3,762 RE

During 1990, the Board of Directors approved a two-for-
one split of the Corporation’s common stock effective
May S, 1990, and an increase in authonized common stock
from 240,000,000 shares to 480,000,000 shares.

At December 31, 1991, 25.000.000 shares of preferred
stock were authorized. No preferred shares have been
issued. On January 29, 1992, the Corporation announced
that it intends to issue approximately $500 million of con-
vertibie preferred stock.

Net income or loss per common share is computed based
on the weighted average number of common shares out-
standing during the year plus the weighted average com-
mon stock eguivalents. Common stock equivalents consist
of shares subject to stock options and shares potentially
issuabie under deferred compensation programs. For this
computation, net income or loss was adjusted for the after-
tax interest expense applicable to the deferred compensa-
tion programs. The weighted average number of common
shares used for computing earmings or loss per share was
313,984,000 in 1991, 293,592,000 in 1990, and 292,465,000
n 1989.

The Corporation has a shareholder rights plan for all
sharcholders. This plan i+ designed 10 help ensure that ail
Wesunghouse shareholders receive faur and equal treatment
in the event of any proposal to acquire control of the
Corporation. One right was attached 10 each share of com-
mon stock outstanding on December 17, 1988, and to each
share issued thereafier. Iniually, no separaie nghts certifi-

cates were issued because the rights are represented by and
automatically traded with the Corporation’s common stock
certificates. Under certain circumstances, the rights may be
redeemed at a price of $.005 per right. The nghts will
expire in December 1998 uniess redeemed earhier by the
Corporation. The rights become exercisable at $100 per
right upon occurrence of certain events related to the accu-
mulauon of 20% or more of the Corporation’s shares by
any one person or group. Also, the nghts become exercis-
abie upon occurrence of certan events related to the
Corporation's involvement in a merger or other business
combination. Thereafier, the nights will trade separately
from the Corporation's common stock. and separate certifi-
cates representing the rights will be ssued.

Note 18: Stock Options and Other Long-Term incentive
Compensation Awards

The 1991 and 1984 Long-Term Incentive Plans provide for
the granting of stock options, stock appreciation rights, and
other performance awards to key employees of the
Corporation and its subsidiaries. The 1991 Plan 1s sumular in
all material respects to the 1984 Plan with the 1984 Plan
being restricted to corporate officers and non-officer busi-
ness unit managing executives effective with the adoption
of the 1991 Plan for other executives.

Four mullion shares have been authorized for awarding
under the 1991 Plan. Options covering 2,225,600 shares
were granted as of December 31, 1991 under the 1991 Plan.
An aggregate of 12,000,000 shares has been authorized for
awarding under the 1984 Plan, of which stock options cov-
ering 10,327,676 shares, 694,200 performance shares,
36,200 restricied shares, and 51.600 performance stock
options were granted as of December 31, 1991.

During 1991, 255 employees of the Corporation and 1ts
subsidianies were eligible and were granted options and
other performance awards under the 1991 Plan and 307
employees were eligible and were granted options and
other performance awards under the 1984 Plan. The option
price under the Plans may not be less than the fair market
value of the shares on the date the option is granted. The
options were granted for terms of 10 years and become
exercisable in whole or in part afier the commencement of
the second year of the term, except for the grants of stock
options in December 1991 which became exercisable
immediately.

Stock options are also outstanding under the 1979 Stock
Option and Long-Term Incentive Plan. No additional
awards may be granted under that Plan.

At December 31, 1991, 255 employees held outstanding
options under the 1991 Plan, 393 employees held outstand-
ing options under the 1984 Plan, and 24 employees held
outstanding options under the 1979 Plan. All options out-
stunding under the 1979 and 1991 Plans. and all options
outstanding under the 1984 Plan excem idvose zranied in
April 1991, were exercisable at December 31, 1991.
Outstanding options have expiration dates ranging from
1992 10 2001.
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Stock Option Information
ishares in thousands )

Shares suhyect 1o apnon

Balance at January | AT¢w 37 3278

Options granted 6718 Q46 1.0

Opuons exercised (178} (340) (1.066)
Opuons ermunated 47) (46 39)
Balance at December 31 10227 3 im

Weighied average opuon price

Balance a! January | $28467 $2558 s

Options granied 2062 36.53 2778

Opuons exercised 1718 2143 1962

Options termunaed o 30.23 21713

Balance at December 3] $2356 2867 32558

During 1991, 94,400 performance shares totalling $3
million were paid 10 15 employees based on performance
shares granted in 1988 for'the performance period 1988
through 1990.

Note 18: Contingent Lisbilities and Commitments

Uranium Settlements

The Corporation had previously provided for all estimated
future costs associated with the resolution of all uranium
supply contract suits and related litigation dating back to
the 1970's. The remaining balance at December 31, 1991,
is believed to be adequate considering all facts and circum-
stances known 10 management. The future obligations
require providing spectfic quantities of uranium and prod-
ucts and services over a period extending beyond the year
2010. The net costs of meeting these obligations and other
related settlement transactions are applied to the balance of
the Liability and are not reflected in results of operations.
Vanances from estimates which may occur will be consid-
ered in determuning if an adjustment of the liability is

Litigation

The age discrimination suit filed by the Equal Employment
Opportunity Commission in the early 1980 alleging that
the Corporation’s policy relating to severance benefits
available 10 certain reurement-cligible employees violated
the Age Discrimination and Employment Act has been
resolved in favor of Westinghouse. The courts found that
Westinghouse had not discriminated on the basis of age and
that Westinghouse had not violated the law nor incurred
any Liabiliry. )

In December 1988, the Republic of the Philippines
(Republic) o7 the Philippmes National Power Corporation
(NPC) filed a lawsuit in the U.S. District C. .1 101 the
Distnct of New Jersey asserung claims against the
Corporation and other parties related 10 a contract for the
construction of & nuclear power plant in the Philippines and

a related consulting contract. All of the counts, except for
the count alleging tortious interference with fiduciary duty,
were stayed pending their disposition in arbitration before
the Intemational Chamber of Commerce (ICC). The
Republic and NPC challenged the jurisdiction of the ICC,
arguing that the contract between the parties. including s
arbitration provision, was invalid due to alleged bribery in
the procurement of the contract.

On December 19, 1991, the ICC arbitration panel issued
its award finding that the Republic and NPC had failed 10
carry their burden of proving the alieged bribery by the
Corporation. The panel thereby concluded that the arbitra-
tion clauses and the contracts were vahd and that the panel
has junsdiction over the remaining disputes between NPC
and the Corporation. The next phase of the arbitration will
address the construction of the plant and other commercial
claims.

The New Jersey court. with respect 10 the one count
remaining before it, has reserved until trial the question of
whether punitive damages may be sought and has limited
compensatory damages in the case 10 the amount of the
alleged bribes. Westinghouse has denied that there have
been any bribes and believes that in any case the compen-
satory damages, if any, that could result from the court’s
ruling would be in the range of $17 million. The Repubiic
will likely argue that the damages are higher. A trial date
in the lawsuit has been set for March 1992, although
Westinghouse has moved to dismiss the suit based upon the
ICC panel’s ruling. The Corporation deems the claims
against it 1o be without merit.

At present, there are 10 pending actions brought by utili-
ties claiming a substantial amount of damages in connec-
tion with alleged tube degradation in steam generators sold
by the Corporation as components for nuclear steam supply
systems. Management believes that the Corporation has
meritorious defenses to these actions. Westinghouse has
also entered into agreements with five utility plant owners
groups which toll the statute of limitations regarding their
steam generator tube degradation claims. Westinghouse has
notified its insurance carmiers of the 10 pending steam gen-
erator actions and the claims.

The Corporation is defending 13 class action, derivative
and individual lawsuits brought by shareholders of the
Corporation against the Corporation, WFSI, WCC, and/or
cenain present and former directors and officers of the
Corporation, as well as other unrelated parties. One lawsuit
is pending in each of the following jurisdictions: the U.S.
Dustrict Count (USDC) for the Southern District of New
York, the USDC for the Southern District of Texas, a
Pennsylvania state court, and a Texas state court. The
remaining nine actions are pending in the USDC for the
Western District of Pennsylvania. Together, these actions
aliege vanous federal securities law and common law
violahons ansing out of (i) alleged misstatements or
omussions contaned in the Corporation's publac filings
concerning the financial condition of the Corporation,
WFSI, and WCC in connection with a $975 million charge
1o earings announced on February 27, 1991, a public
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offering of Westinghouse common stock in May 1991, and
2 $1.680 million charge to eamings announced on

October 7, 1991, and (ii) the Corporation’s acquisition of
substantially all of the assets of Knoll International, Inc.
and Knoll Nevada, Inc. in exchange for Westunghouse com-
mon stock in August 1990 (these claums are asserted only
by the seller of these assets). Management believes that the
Corporation and its officers and directors have mentonous
defenses 1o these actions.

The Corporation’s commitments for the purchase of plant
and equipment and for other contingent liabilities consist-
ing of guarantees, pending Litigation, and other claims,
except as described below, were not matenal.

Financing Commitments — WFSI
Commitments with Off-Balance-Sheet Credit Risk
(im mullions)

PXl December 38 & Taos 1 0e T d

Guarantees and credit enhancemen $1082 $1228
Standby ieners of credit and other*standby agreements an $27
Commitments 1o extend credut 913 1,340
Partership calls and other investment COmmiIMEnts 3ob 495

a;r-u.mmnu with off-balance -sheet credit nsk $1.782 $35%0

During the course of its normal business activities, WFSI
issues various commitments to provide funds, including
joan of investment commitments, guarantees, standby let-
ters of credit. and standby commitments, generally in
exchange for fees.

Guarantees and credit enhancements, standby letiers of
credit and other standby agreements are associaled primar-
ily with real estate projects. They were issued 1o assist Cus-
tomers in obtaining construction project financing from a
third party at a lower rate than otherwise would be avail-
able or to improve the salability of private or public bonds.
Typically, the sole condition for funding under these com-
mitments is default by the borrower 1o the third party lender.
Standby letters of credit and other standby agreements Typi-
cally require the satisfaction of vanous conditions by the
customer before funding is required. Such conditions may
include a specified percentage of construction compietion
or 3 minimum occupancy level.

More than half of the commitments to extend credit at
December 31, 1961 represent amounts available 1o corpo-
rate customers under existing revolving credit agreements.
Commitments to extend credit issued 1o real estate cus-
tomers total 32% at the same date. Investment commut-
ments comprise the remainder of the commutments 10
extend credit. Investment commitments include agreements
to fund, upon call, equity interests in partmerships, gener-
ally as a limited partner, or in other entities. Commutments
Lave fixed expiration dates from 1992 through 2000 and
may expire unexercised.

Depending on market conditions, funding of approxi-
mately 43% of these commitments may be required in
1992 primarily related to standby agreements. commit-
ments 1o extend ¢/ .. and partnership calls. Based upon

the expectation of funding, approximately $280 million of
the $1.680 million valuation allowance was assigned 10
financing commitments.

Mote 20: Leases

The Corporation has commitments under operating lease
for centain machinery and equipment and facilities used in
various operations. Rental expense in 1991, 1990, and 1989
was $276 million, $233 million, and $215 million. These
amounts include immaterial amounts for contingent rentals
and sublease Income.

Minimum Rental Parments
(i mullions)

Subseguent years T84
Minumum rental payments $1.383

mat:mﬂmwum

During 1991, there were no significant acquisitions of
divestitures: however, in 1990 and 1989, the Corporation
acquired and divested many businesses and entered into
several joint ventures. All acquisitions were accounted for
under the purchase method. Matenal transactions are dis-
cussed below.

In August 1990, the Corporation acquired substantially
all of the assets and assumed certain of the liabiliues of
Knoll International, Inc., an office fumniture company. The
stock of subsidiary and related companies was also ac-
quired. Total consideration included cash and Westinghouse
common stock valued at $112 million in total, and the
assumption of $111 million of existing Knoll debt. Purchase
accounting adjustments relating to this acquisition were
recorded in 1990 and i991.

Also in August 1990, substantially all of the assets of
Westinghouse Beverage Group were soid 1o a corporation
organized by former managers of Beverage for total consid-
eration of $209 million, including $166 million of cash.
Westinghouse retained 2 15% interest in the new venture.

In October 1990, WSAV acquired Unued Federal
Savings Bank (United), an llinois thrift. In December
1990, United acquired all of the assets and cenain of the
liabilities of Enterprise Savings Bank (Enterpnise), another
Iilinois thrift. Te complete the acquisiton of Enterprise,
United received $55 million of government assistance. The
assets of the combined thrifts totalled $876 mullion at the
acquisition date. WSAV contribuied total cash of $41 mil-
lion to the thrifts, which was sufficient 10 meet current reg-

ulatory capital requirements.
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In December 1989, the Corporation acquired the Legacy
and Metropolitan Broadcasting Companies ¢ r $369 mullion
including 8 5.3% interest in 3 newly-formed subsidiary
which included existing Group W radio stations.

Shaw-Walker, an office furniture company, was acquired
n November 1989 far $78 million which included 934 826
+ares of Westinghouse stock valued at $66 million. In
Jecember 1989, the Corporation acquired Reff Inc., also an
office furniture company, for $100 million.

In February 1989, the Corporation and Asea Brown
Bover (ABB) formed a joint venture involving transmis-
sion and distribution equipment. The Corporation owned
55% of the joint venture until ABB exercised its option in
December 1989 10 purchase the remainder from
Westinghouse. The results of operations for 1989 include
the activities of this business for the entire year.

In January 1989, the Corporation completed the sale of
most of the assets of its elevator business 10 Schindler
Corporation.

Tse transmission and distribution equipment and eleva-
tor divestitures resulted in gains totalling $399 million
in 1989.

In July 1989, Westinghouse Canada’s transmission and
distribution business was sold to ABB. Sales and segment
operating profit for the businesses sold 1o ABB in 1989
totalled $1,149 million and $65 million.

During 1989, $384 million of restructuring provisions
were recorded for business restructuring programs, primar-
iy for product line relocations and the sale or closedown of
businesses and facilities.

Mote 22: Segment information

Westinghouse 's a diversified. _iobal, technology-based
corporation operating in the principal business arenas of
teievision and radio broadcasting, defense electronics,
financial service:, and the industrial, construction and elec-
tnc utility markets. The Corporation's businesses are struc-
tured into seven segments — Broadcasting, Electronic
Systems, Environmental, Financial Services, Industries,
The Knoll Group, and Power Systems. Results of interna-
tional manufacturing entities, export sales, and foreign
licensee income are included in the financial information of
the segment that has operating responsibility.

Broadcasting (Group W) provides a variety of communi-
cations services consisting primarily of commercial broad-
casting, program production, and distribution. It sells
adver”ising ume to radio, television, and cable advertisers
through national and local sales organizations. Group W
currently owns and operates five network affiliated televi-
sion broadcasting stations and 17 radio stations. The group

aiso provides programming and distribution services 1o the
cable television industry. The Longines- Wittnauer Watch
Company and Westinghouse Communications are also
included in this segment.

The Elcctronic Systems segment is a world leader in the
research, development. production. and suppon of
advanced clectronic systems for the Department of
Defense, Federal Aviation Administration, National
Acronautics and Space Admunistration, other government
agencies, and U.S. allies. Product. include surveillance and
fire control radars, command and control systems, elec-
tronic countermeasures equipment, electro-optical and

spaceborne sensors, m * nching and handling equip-
ment, torpedoes, soner, * munications. The group 1s
moving to expand in tec. -~ ¥y complementary com-
mercial markets such as air traffic control, security systems,
and drug traffic interdiction.

The Environmental segment includes all of the

Corporation’s capabilities in the treatment and disposal of
radioactive, hazardous and toxic, and municipal waste. This
group also operates several government-owned facilities
primarily under contract with the Department of Energy.

The Financial Services segment is comprised of WFSI
and its principal subsidiaries, WCC and WSAV. WCl, a
part of the legal entity WFSI, is included in industries for
segment reporting. The primary function of the Financial
Services segment is 1o manage its existing asset portfoiios
and debt in order 10 reduce nsk nd to strengthen its asset
performance. WSAV owns and operates an [llinois thrift
mstitution with 20 branch offices.

The Industries segment consists of businesses that supply
& variety of products and services 1o a broad range of cus-
tomers in the capita! goods, industrial, construction and
electnical equipme... markets, and 10 onginal equipment
manufacturers. The group's products are distributed
through WESCO's 280 distribution centers. WESCO dis-
tnbutes Westinghouse electrical products as well as prod-
ucts manufactured by other suppliers. WCI, which conducts
land and community development activities primarily in
Flonda, California, and Arizona, is included in this seg-
memformmagmmwrposu,hnprmmedmlyin
the accompanying tables.

The Knoll Group designs, manufactures, and distributes
office furniture 1o an expanding global market and consists
of Westinghouse Furniture Systems, Reff Inc., Shaw-
Walker, and Knoll International, Inc.

The Power Systems segment designs, develops, manu-
factures and services nuclear and fossil-fueled power gen-
eration systems and is a leading supplier of reload nuclear
fuel to the global electric utility market.
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Sules and Opersting Revenues and Seginent ( Iperating Profit
n mullion
- S—

L Towl Sees and Operaung Revenugy.,
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Financial information for the beverage business, dive businesses. dives
P, and the eievator and tra TISSION and Gistnbu ! and Unther E

my-

b, S0

ment Operanng Profy (Loss) '

$ 1% § I $13
Electronic Svsiems 1248 1,19 2.5948 193 ¥y -
Environmenta 1191 2 ) 4
Finaucial Services 1,064 209 L 1100 had fe
Industries i 3 1471 142 - .

Wl 258 3 27 122 78
The K noll Groug 673 4l o 7 28
Fower Svstems 1651 2447 L 26l 2 .-
Divested and Onther [ 314 455 50 ¢ Ve
Intersegment sules S04 ) alx —

Tota 127% $12915 §12.544 $ (867 $ 964
.

Segment sales and operating rever nclude products restructunng provisions was $168 million for Broadcasting
that are transferred betweer WCEIME ECNCraily at inver S. 4 m i <'E ectronic Systems g <« m for
tor st plus a2 maryp Se grner YT ng pr § o < Environmer 4 “.“n rr n for I dustnes S‘v' muithon for
CONnsIS I sales Or operating revenues less segment opers Wi and $256 i n for Power Systems. The remainder
ng expenses that Cost of sales or revenue, market { the provisions were fo restructunng actvitic
Ing. adminstrative ENeral ¢xXpense eprecia na and NEr UNUSUa ms
amoriizanon, andg re tructunng pros ns Revenues and profits fore1gn manutactunng opera

A prov n 1Or Costs associated with the Corporatio tions are include the applicable seginer
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talied $160 1 n. Pnort &l Pron e £ capital expenditures are presented below. A not ident
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Svystems ¢ Adustments and elin gdec ed 1 o

4 e Por recorded $384 1 n ot ment 10¢ Nable assets represent the removi i inter
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U.S. government and its agencies, whose purchases
accounted for 23% of the consolidated sales and operating
revenues in 1991 and 1990, and 22% in 1989. Of the 1991
purchases, 85% were made from the Electronic Systemns
segment. No other customer made purchases otalling 10%
ar more of consohidated sales and operating revenues.

Resezrch and Development
(m mullions)
Westnghouse sponsored.
Electromic Systems §% § $7
Power Sysiems n 75 o9
Other -t 40 3
Customer sponsored:
Electronuc Sysiems 4 608 4aT7
Power Systems n 83 6S
Onher » 35 46
Totai research and development4-
expenditures 89 S1.018 $769

Included in the net loss for 1991 1s income of sub-
sidiaries iocated outside the U.S. These subsidianes con-
tributed $36 million of net income. These same operations
had a net income contribution of 23% in 1990 and 9% in
1989 Subsidiaries located outside the U.S. comprised 4%
of total assets and 2%, 1%, and 2% of total liabilities for
the same three years.

Financial Information by Geographx Ares

(en mullions )

oy

"‘:w_a

b\.‘ e A-OJ lu—“.“n.. M.
Total sales and operanng revenuves:
us $1L.1% $11.359 $11.305
Outside the US 1664 1.556 1539
Totwl $12.7%4 $12918 12848
Operaung profit (loss).
us $ 959 § 389 $ %6
Outside the US 92 13 148
Towl $ B § S0 $ o
Segmeni identifisbie assets:
us. $17.767 $18911 $15.950
Outside the US 768 826 736
Total SIR.S38 $19.737 $16.686

The Corporation sells products manufactured domesti-
cally 1o customers throughout the world using domestic
divisions and subsidiaries doing business primarily outside
the US. Generally, products manufactured outside the U.S.
are sold outside the U S.

g4

Sales From Products and Services Sold Outside the LS.

(im mullzonms )
Erisd D™ T8 08
% of % of % of
Consol. Consol. Consol.
Amoum Sales  Amount Sales Amount  Sales r
Subsichanes
Outside the
us. $1.664 130% $155%6 121% 81539 120%
U.S exports 114l 89% 1195 92% 1,131 £ E%
Towl $2805 219% $2751 213% $2670 208%

Mote 23: WFS! and Consolidated Subsidiaries

intercompany transactions and balances between WFSI and

Westinghouse Electric Corporation {WELCO) have not
been eliminated in the following statements.

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

{in mullions;
P "
Thi Deconie D TTE A s, 1994, 19983
Cash and cash equivalents $ 68§ § 20
Marketable securives 452 241
Recervabies held for investment. net £312 7.4%
Assets held for sale or restructunng, net 1,248 2,356
Onher assets (@) 1,726 1.723
Total assets $10.423 312016
Short-term dets $ 129 5455
Long-term detx 4016 5.160
Thrift deposits 12 689
Other Latilives (b} 879 44)
Minority interest in equity of consobdated

subsidianes 152 152
Sharcholders ' equity 1405 1.419
Total Lishilities and shareholders’ equity $10423 512016

(@) Osher assets include a recervabie from WELLCO of 8525 mullion at
December 31, 1990, related 10 the support agreement

b} Other habilities include a pavabie 10 WELCO a December 31, 1991,
related 10 WELCO s retirement of @ $299 million WESE bank loan on
December 23, 1991 At December 31, 1990 81 14 mullion of the balance
relates to the funding of WCT activinies.

Condensed Consolidsted Statement of Income

(im mulhions)
B EICH 1991 L

Eamed income and other revenues $1322 $1353 sL1w
Interest expense (741  (T78)  (6TT)
Provision for losses, including

valuation aliowences asns 1™ 0
Other expenses (I H 208 (9M
Income txes 528 78 (52)
Mimonty interest i income of consobidated

subsicdianes (% (13) —
Net income (loss) 1033 § (504) § 52
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Five-Year Summary

Selected Financial and Statistical Data ...

idollars in millions except per share amounts)
M R ‘....A»Z; -

$12.7%4

I 1990 Y T

il iy

B

%71

Tonal sales and operating revenues $ 12915 § 12k $ 12500 $ n3a
Other income and expenises, net s 173 117 145 o8
nierest expense (234) (247) (235) (220) (125)
Income taxes 25 (144) (340) (243) (147)
Net income (loss) (1,086} 268 922 823 0!
Net income (loss) as & percentage of sales K% 21% 7.2% 6.6% 79%
Retum on average equity NM 5.7% 22% 235% 312%
Earmings (loss ) per share $(346 $ 09 $ 315 § 28 0§ 3112
Dnvidends per share 1.40 1.35 115 096 0.82
Cash and marketable secunties excluding WFSI s 59 $ 1% $ 1224 $ L108 $ 1435
Cash and cash eguivaients — WFS!| oRE 206 292 i29 387
Marketabie secunties — WFSL 452 24) 765 470 381
Plant and equipment. net 152 2.506 2381 2495 2337
Receivabies held for investment. net — WFS] 5312 7.49%0 7.761 6305 5227
Assets heid for sale or restructuning. net — WFS] 2,248 2,356 - - -
Other assets — WFSI 1661 1,198 1035 630 226
Total assets 20,159 22033 20314 16937 15,196
Short-term debw excluding WFSI b Xy g 1.983 1.862 1,953 1528
Long-1erm dein excluding WFS! i.264 931 744 &2 823
Short-term dett — WFS] 2% 4155 4.206 3293 2.500
Long -term debt — WFSI 4018 $.160 3,621 2629 1528
Common shareholders equuty 3746 3897 4354 3795 3222
Average shares for earmings (loss) per share 313 ”4.242 203,591 984 292.465,132 261,088,150 290,360 540
Market price range per share $31.13, $39%p- 2410 518 v 25% $I8Y- 230 $37'4-20
Common shareholders ar year end 120,833 101,157 106,770 112,774 116,898
Average number of employees 113,664 115,774 121.963 119.640 112478

NM ~ Not mearingful because of net loss in 199]

Quarterly Financial Information ...
(1n millions except per share amounts)

December 31 $ 3417 s 914 $ 1M s 0.5 s.as 2y,

Seprember 30 3426 (#98) (1,482) (456) 838 w zw.

June 30 317 821 17 041 038 W, 26V,

March 31 2Tm 719 o 0. .35 3 2
9

December 31 $ 3703 s N § (449 $(1.53) $0.35 314 24y
Sepiember 30 3175 912 255 087 035 kL 26
June 30 3175 10 252 0.86 035 ¢ 34
March 21 1862 807 210 071 030 3% 34
$12915 $2,700 S 268 $091 $138 3% 24')y
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Additional Financial Information . e

(m mulisons)

B et

-——

N |

i v T

g R e e o
e T e 1990 1909 L A 1999 1eg 1w L 1990 1989

Year Ended December 31

Product sales $ 8351 § §583 § R.651 $8351 $6563 $E691 § — § — § —
Service sales and revenues 4443 4312 4153 L 2982 2961 1322 1353 1197
Total sales and operating revenues 12794 12915 12844 11472 11565 11652 1322 1353 1197
Expenses and Otber liems

Cost of goods soid (6.408) (6035) (6447) “(6408) (6035) (6.447) — - —
Cost of services sold (4800) (4.180) (2.842) (2184) (2.253) (2.001) (2,646) (1927) (841)
Markenung. admunustration and general expenses (2075 (1835 (1.810) (1879  (1.663) (1.690) (1%) (172) €120
Depreciation and gmortizabon (378 (363) (367) (360 (345 (354 g (s 3y
Gains from major business divestitures — — 399 - — 39%9 — — —
Provisions for restructuning X -— - (384) —_ — (365) -— — (19
Other income and expenses., net 5 173 17 10 170 12 (L)) — -
Imerest expense (23 247y  (235) (232) (242) (@35 @ 5 —
Eguity in income (loss) of WFSI - — — (1,033) (504) 152 — - -
Trial expenses and other nems (13890) (12.487) (11,569 (12,056) (10872) (10429) (2867  (2.122) (993
Income (loss) before income taxes and mimonty interest  (1,096) 428 1275 (584) 693 1223 (1,545) (765) 204
Income taxes 28 (144) (340) (500) 422) (288) 5§28 278 52)
Minonty interest in income of consohidated subsidianes (15) (16) (13} 2y 3 (13) (i (13) -
Net income (1oss) S(1086 § 268 § 922 $(1.086) $ 268 § 922  $(103%) § (504) § 182
Balance Sheet

At December 11

Assets

Cash and cash eguivalents $ 1080 § 492 $ 35 § 286 $ 685 § 206
Marketabie secunnes 656 1.031 204 790 482 243
Recevables 6921 9337 1.60% 1,847 s312 7490
Inventones. net 1,343 1.249 1.3 1.249 — —_
Uncompleted contracts costs over related billings » 47 » 473 . - —

Assers held for sale or restructunng, net 2248 2.356 - — 248 2356

Property, plant and eguipment. net 252 2 1526 2.506 — —
Investment in WFSI _— —_— 1.405 1419 - —

Other assets 5028 | 45ES 3.%s 3505 1,726 1.723

Total assets $20.159 $22.033 $11.544 512078 $10.423 $12016
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Accounts payable $ B3 § BOS $ K3 § RS $ — 5 -
Uncompieted contracts hillings over relsted costs %4 703 580 703 - —
Shori-term debt 5576 6.138 5m 1.983 3299 4158
Long-term dedt §280 6091 1.264 LAl aMe S8

Other habilines 3666 4228 1518 3737 1551 1.130

Total habilities 16240 17965 .™m 8159 8866 10445

Minority interest in equity of consolidaied subsidianes 173 171 21 19 152 152
Shareholders’ equity & &9 1746 s Laes 1419

Total lisbilinies and shareholders” equity $20,159 $22.033 $11.544 $12.075 $10423 $12016

{a) The informarion in the tabie is presenied to assist the reader in further analyzing the Consolidared Financial Statements. F inancial date of Westinghouse
Financial Services. Inc (WESI) and Westinghouse Elecrric Corporanon with WESI shown on an equry basis (WELCO) are presensed TOTAL includes the

I S T TN N e el o —

P

mmql’ﬂfowwrwq&ndnelmmndmwnymmdhlmrﬂ Infarmanion relanng to WELL O s not presented in
accordance with SFAS No 94 which requires consolidarion of WFSI. -
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MANAGEMENT

‘Paul E. Lego

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Theodore Stem
Senmior Executive Vice President

Executive Vice Presidents

A

Gary M. Clark
Industries Group and Corporate Resources

George C. Dorman
Human Resources and Total Quality

Warren H. Hollinshead
Finance

Richard A. Linder
Electromic Systems Group

Anthony A. Massaro, Jr.
Environmenial Group

Robert F. Pugliese
Legal and Corporate Affairs

Maunce C. Sardi
Chairman, The Knoll Group, Inc.

Burton B. Staniar
Chairman, Westinghouse Broadcasting Company, Inc.

John B. Yasinsky
Power Sysiems Group

Leo W. Yochum
Chairman, Westinghouse Financial Services, Inc.

a7

Vice Presidents

Frank R. Bakos
Power Generation

Isaac R. Barpal

Science and Technology

Joseph L. Becherer
Distribution and Control

Laurence A. Chapman

Treasurer

Thomas P. Costello
President, Thermo King Corporation

Robert E. Faust
Controller

H. Joe Frazier
President, Westinghouse Communities, Inc.

August W. Frisch
Taxes and Pension Invesiments
and General Tax Counsel

James L. Gallagher
Governmeni Operations

R. Noel Longuemare
Systems Development and Technology

Eileen P. Massaro
Corporate Relations

Alan J. Meilinger
Corporate Services

James S. Moore
Executive Resources and Development
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E. A James Peretti '
President, Westinghouse Electric Supply Company

Samuel R. Pitts
Environmemtal Affairs

Edward N. Silcotnt
Commercial Systems

Nathaniel D. Woodson
Energy Systems .

F. Leo Wright
Governmen: Affairs




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Paul E. Lego
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Westinghouse Electric Corporation, Pittsburgh, Pa.

Robent W. Campbell
Director and Retired Chairman, Canadian Pacific
Limited, Calgary, Alberta, Canada

Frank C. Carlucci
Vice Chairman, The Carlyle Group, Washington, D C.
B

Barbara Hackman Franklin
President, Franklin Associates, Washington, D .C.

William H. Gray III
President, United Negro College Fund, New York, N'Y.

David T. McLaughlin
President and Chief Executive Officer, The Aspen
. Institute, Queenstown, Md.

Rene C. McPherson
Retired Chairman, Dana Corporation, Toledo, Ohio

The Board of Directors was saddened during

the year by the death of John B. Carter, retired president
and chief executive officer of the Equitable Life
Assurance Society of the United States, who had
provided valued service as a member of the Board of
Directors since 1985.

Two new members were welcomed to the Board:
William H. Gray II1, president of the United

Negro College Fund, and Leo W. Yochum, who
previously served for 17 years as chief financial officer
of Westinghouse.

Richard M. Morrow
Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
Amoco Corporation, Chicago, 1l

Richard R. Pivirotto

Retired Chairman, Associated Dry Goods Corporation,

New York, N Y.

Theodore Stern
Senior Executive Vice President
Westinghouse Electric Corporation, Pittsburgh, Pa.

Hazys T. Watkins
Chairman Emeritus, CSX Corporation, Rickmond. Va.

Leo W. Yochum
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Westinghouse Financial Services, Inc., Pinisburgh, Pa.
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